
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATIONS 
1. Honoring Arts and Letters  Tradition of Literary Excellence Award – Qiu Xiaolong 
2. Honoring Arts and Letters Returning Artists – Scott Black 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 10, 2022 – Study Session (Housing and Third Ward Revitalization RFP) 
2. October 10, 2022 – Regular  Meeting Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1.  Suzanne Greenwald is nominated to the Commission on Senior Issues as a fill in (2B vacant seat) by 

Councilmember Tim Cusick. 
 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 None 
 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  Please complete 
and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 none 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding 
2. Central County Dispatch Contract 
3. 2019 CDBG Contract Agreement 
4. Tree Removal Contract 

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT   (vote required) 

1. Discussion of Fox 2 News Report – Creveling Drive. 
2. Market at Olive Update (revised 10/24/22) 
3. Conditional Use Permit (CUP 22-09) Market at Olive – Phase II, Lot 9 
4. Conditional Use Permit (CUP 22-10) Market at Olive – Phase II, Lot 10 
5. OMCI Program – Participation for 2023 (River Des Peres and Deer Creek) 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 24, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1.  Bill 9487– AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 
and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE. 

 
2. Bill 9488 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PHASE II  OF THE 

PROPOSED MARKET AT OLIVE  DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 8630 OLIVE BOULEVARD. 
 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions   (vote required) - none 
 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 

1. Bill 9489 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VII OF THE TRAFFIC CODE, TO REVISE 
TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

 
2. Bill 9490 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 

OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID 
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY KNOWN AS LOT A AND COMMON 
GROUND 2 OF PLAT 4 OF THE MARKET AT OLIVE DEVELOPMENT, FROM “PD” PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, “GC” GENERAL COMMERCIAL AND “SR” SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “PD” PLANNED DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (“PD-C”) 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys  

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Posted 21st  day of October 2022. 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


WHEREAS, Jorge Luis Borges once said “poetry is not the books in the library. Poetry is the 
encounter of the reader with the book, the discovery of the book”; and 

WHEREAS, Qiu Xiaolong was born in Shanghai, China, and published poetry, translation and 
criticism before coming to the United States as a Ford Foundation Fellow in 1988; and  

WHEREAS, today we gather to honor the literary work of Qiu Xiaolong, the author of fourteen 
novels in the award-winning Inspector Chen series, and several collections of short stories, 
poetry, and poetry translations; and 

WHEREAS, Qiu Xiaolong’s books have sold millions of copies and have been translated into 
more than twenty languages; his first novel, Death of a Red Heroine, garnered him the 2001 
Anthony Award for Best First Novel and most of his Inspector Chen novels have been made into 
BBC radio dramatization; and 

WHEREAS, Qiu Xiaolong obtained his PH.D. in comparative literature at Washington University; 
and currently lives in St. Louis, Missouri with his wife and daughter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of University City, Missouri, on behalf of the 
people of University City, congratulates Qiu Xiaolong on receiving the 2022 Tradition of Literary 
Excellence Award for his outstanding literary contributions to the City of University City and the 
world. 

WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of the City of University 
City to be affixed this 24th day of October in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-Two. 

 SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Tim Cusick Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 1 - 1



WHEREAS, the University City Municipal Commission on Arts and Letters is pleased to welcome Scott Black 
to the 2022 Returning Artists Series; and 

WHEREAS, Scott Black attended Blackberry Lane Elementary School, Brittany Woods Junior High School 
and University City Senior High School; and 

WHEREAS, Scott Black studied under jazz education pioneer, David Baker; and 

WHEREAS, Scott Black has performed both as a soloist and as part of the jazz rhythm sections in 
the great cities of New York and Chicago; and  

WHEREAS, Scott Black currently teaches the “language of jazz” to improvisation classes at Tucson Jazz 
Institute, one of the most distinguished jazz schools in the country; and  

WHEREAS, the Ellington Big Band, of the Tucson Jazz Institute, has placed in the top three at the Jazz at 
Lincoln Center Competition and Festival, and has also performed three times at the prestigious Monterey 
Jazz Festival. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of University City, Missouri, do hereby recognize and 
acknowledge Scott Black for his many professional accomplishments, and for his return to the City Of 
University City as a guest of the Municipal Commission on Arts And Letters’ Returning Artists Series, a 
program which brings back artistically renowned graduates of University City High School to work with current 
University City students. 

WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of the City of University City to be affixed 
this 24th day of October in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-Two. 

 SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Tim Cusick Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 2 - 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

STUDY SESSION  
Scope of Services Review  

Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Consultant RFP 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, October 10, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA  
 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, October 10, 2022, 
Mayor Terry Crow, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:  
 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (excused) 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
    
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose and City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr. 
 

2. CHANGES TO THE REGULAR AGENDA 
  None. 
 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES REVIEW – HOUSING AND THIRD WARD REVITALIZATION 
CONSULTANT RFP 
Mr. Rose stated the Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Project was created by Council as a 
result of a Redevelopment Agreement with NOVUS.  In this Agreement Council spelled out that 
10 million dollars would be used to benefit the 3rd Ward revitalization efforts.  Although a 
different financing structure was discussed prior to the Agreement, this Agreement has 
established that the 10 million dollars will come from;  

• $3,000,000 upon the sale of the property to Costco,  
• $2,000,116, or $92,000 over a twenty-three-year period from the SID, 
• $2,000,484 or $108,000 annually from the pool tax, and  
• $2,000,400 or roughly $104,000 over a twenty-three-year period from the Park and 

Stormwater Fund. 
Prior to the agreement with NOVUS, there were discussions about a different structure of 
financing the 10 million dollars.  That did not materialize, so this proposed structure is included 
in the redevelopment agreement. 
 
Resolution 2021-15 
On October 11, 2021, Council adopted this Resolution establishing the Housing and Third Ward 
Revitalization Task Force.  As a part of that Resolution, staff was directed to provide support 
and the resources needed to help the Task Force identify goals, objectives, and priorities for 
their projects.  However, at this point, the City does not have the resources to fully support the 
Task Force or to bring forward a comprehensive housing strategy and 3rd Ward revitalization 
strategy. 
 

E - 1 - 1



Page 2 of 4 

The Housing Strategy 
One reason Council established this component of the Resolution is because of the low to 
moderate-income tracks within the City that have been identified by the Census as 51% of 
households earning less than 80% of the area medium income.   

This statistic traverses throughout the entire City, with the largest shares in the 2nd and 3rd 
Wards, and a small component in the 1st Ward.  Mr. Rose stated his proposal is to hire a 
consultant with the expertise to create a housing program and allow the Mayor and Council to 
decide who will be eligible to participate.   

Third Ward Revitalization Strategy 
Mr. Rose stated if Council elects to hire a consultant, their first task will be to survey 3rd Ward 
residents to determine their needs.  The results of this survey will be presented to the Task 
Force to garner their input and work with the consultant to create a program structured around 
those desires. 

Next Steps: 
• Deputy City Manager, Brooke Smith to work with the Finance Director and his staff to

prepare an RFP for a consultant to assist the Task Force in creating a housing program
and guidance on 3rd Ward revitalization, consistent with Resolution 2021-15.

• Staff to narrow down proposals and set up a joint meeting with Council and the Task
Force to hear presentations from top firms.

• City Manager's recommendations presented to Council

Mayor Crow asked Mr. Rose if he could explain which funds have to be used for a specific 
purpose?  Mr. Rose stated the Parks and Stormwater Fund is restricted and can only be used 
for stormwater or parks, but all of the other funds are unrestricted. 

Councilmember Clay reaffirmed the financing structure previously stated Mr. Rose and 
confirmed that a different funding structure had been discussion earlier in process but not bear 
out for a number of reasons, and the structure presented today was the decided upon. 
A. Mr. Rose confirmed that was correct.

Mayor Crow asked Mr. Rose to walk through which buckets have to be used for a specific 
purposes? 
A. The Park and Stormwater is restricted and must be used for stormwater or parks.  The other
funds are unrestricted.

Councilmember Smotherson posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q. Why was the City-Wide Housing Strategy omitted from this presentation?
A. I understand that the Task Force expressed some concerns since they believed that the
program should be limited to the 3rd Ward.  And while he thinks everyone agrees that it's
important to have a housing strategy, it is not a decision Council has to make today.  So, he is
proposing that the City-Wide Housing Strategy be altered rather than eliminated.
Q. So, if the Task Force expressed that desire, why is planning for streets, public space,
green space, public safety, and other social infrastructures still under your deliverables?
A. While the Task Force can express their desires, Council has charged staff; which also
includes the consultant, with making their recommendations on what they believe will constitute
a viable revitalization and housing program.  Therefore, the consultant needs to be privy to all of
the deliverables to effectively assist both entities.
Q. Will the Task Force also be able to present their recommendations to Council?
A. While the ultimate goal will be to reconcile each party's recommendation to make certain
they comply with the Resolution, Council will be made aware of both proposals.

E - 1 - 2



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Q.  Why is the Parks & Stormwater Fund even being utilized for the 3rd Ward?  
A.  I believe there is one park in the 3rd Ward that is underdeveloped.  So, the use of those 
funds was based on the concept of fulfilling Council's commitment to identify all of the legitimate 
needs within that community. 
 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q. To be clear, is it correct that this money can only be spent in the 3rd Ward? 
A.  Could it be spent elsewhere?  Yes.  Although it would be troublesome to change directions 
at this point, the Mayor and Council have the authority to decide where those funds should be 
allocated.   
Q.  Is Council's decision to use these funds only for the 3rd Ward contained within the 
Redevelopment Agreement? 
A.  No, the Agreement does not restrict this money to the 3rd Ward. 
Q.  But Council has agreed that these funds should only be allocated to the 3rd Ward? 
A.  That is correct. 
 
Councilmember Klein stated she would like to reiterate that based on her understanding, this 
Council is entirely in favor of designating these funds to the 3rd Ward.  She then posed the 
following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  Is there a timeline for hiring a consultant and bringing together a community 
development group? 
A.  Ms. Smith has informed me that the City cannot accomplish these tasks fast enough.  So, 
she is committed to bringing a consultant on board as soon as possible.   
Q.  Will the consultant be in charge of publicizing this process and the steps being taken 
to fulfill these goals? 
A.  Our Communications Manager started today and will be introduced at the next Council 
meeting.  So, she will be active in creating a communication strategy. 
 
Councilmember Cusick asked Mr. Rose if he would elaborate on the relationship between the 
consultant and the Task Force specifically as it relates to compiling their recommendation?  Mr. 
Rose stated two aspects brought up during Council's initial discussions were providing a 
pathway for renters to become homeowners and improving the housing stock.  And while there 
may not be a lot of daylight in what the Task Force sees as an effective program and what staff 
and the consultant sees, the consultant's role is to provide information and guidance to the Task 
Force; which is led by Brooke Smith, that will assist them in preparing their recommendation. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated he recalls attending meetings in 2016 with Jonathon Brown of 
NOVUS and other folks in U City where the nuggets of this housing program began to take 
shape, and the commitment was made to look at areas of the City that needed help with 
housing and revitalization.  He stated they all realized that the size and scope of this project 
would give them headaches, but from that meeting forward, he is not aware of a time when the 
commitment to accomplish this task has ever wavered.  Therefore, his impression of this 
housing program is that it will not solely be focused on where to put low-income folks in the City, 
but it will be comprised of a big-picture look, where you are trying to develop new ideas and 
strategies that elevate an area and share what has been created at the west end of Olive.  So, 
at this point, it could really be anything. 
 
Mr. Rose stated that is correct.  Part of the discussions associated with the allocation of these 
10 million dollars was trying to determine what had caused such a big distinction between the 
housing values in the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd Wards. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated he does not see how you can separate the aesthetics of a 
neighborhood from the structure someone lives in.  That said would part of the nuts and bolts for 
this type of revitalization have to include the infrastructure, stormwater, and parks?   

E - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Rose stated that is correct, and he thinks most experts would agree that in order to create a 
viable revitalization strategy you have to address more than housing.  When the exact same 
home in the 1st Ward has a different value in the 3rd Ward, it has to be something more than 
the structure.  Do residents feel safe?  Do they have good streets?  Do they have high-quality 
parks?  Do they live in a floodplain?    So yes, the revitalization strategy will need to address a 
great deal more than just housing.  
 Councilmember McMahon asked Mr. Rose if the City was looking at leveraging these 
funds to get more upfront or simply thinking of the annual allocations as money in the bank for 
future needs?  Mr. Rose stated while 10 million dollars won't get everything done, it can lead to 
significant improvements.  And he believes that the consultant will look at the funding streams 
and help staff identify the best approach for leveraging those dollars.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated with the Mayor's approval, he would like to volunteer to 
become the Council liaison for this Task Force.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated sometimes when additional funding starts coming in for a cause the 
customary allocations related to that cause can be supplanted, thereby reducing the amount of 
funding rather than increasing it; much like what happened to the Missouri lottery funds 
allocated for education.  So, he wanted to make sure that the dollars that have already been 
budgeted for the 3rd Ward will remain and that this funding will be an addition to and not a 
substitute for those customary allocations?  Mr. Rose stated when the Mayor and Council 
decided to pursue this project it was based on being equitable, not equal.  Therefore, the intent 
behind any program he recommends will be based on having an additional revenue source and 
not supplanting.   

 
4. ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the Study Session at 6:27 
p.m. 

 
 
 
 

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
  

E - 1 - 4



 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, October 10, 2022,
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (excused) 
Councilmember Tim Cusick 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.; Director 
of Planning & Zoning, Dr. John Wagner; Director of Human Resources, Amy Williams; Deputy City 
Manager/Director of Economic Development, Brooke Smith; Fire Chief Bill Hinson; Police Chief 
Larry Hampton, and Director of Public Works/Parks, Recreation & Forestry, Darren Dunkle. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Mulligan stated the Developer has requested that the following three minor changes be
made to Item M (3); Bill 9488, and the City Clerk has made these changes to the official version
of the Bill, subject to Council's approval.

1. In the 5th Whereas Clause - "Watkins Consolidation" has been changed to "Final Plat"
2. Section 3, paragraph 1 - "and the Landscape Plan dated July 15, 2022" has been deleted
3. Section 3, paragraph 3 - "and resident" has been deleted

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve the Agenda as amended, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion carried unanimously. 

D. PROCLAMATIONS
None 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. September 27, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes was moved by Councilmember Smotherson,

it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously, with the
exception of Councilmember Cusick who was absent from this meeting.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 10, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note whether 
your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment will not 
be recorded in the official record. 
 
Diane Bonds, 8665 Spoon Drive, U City, MO 
Ms. Bonds stated she lives two doors from the creek and as a result of the recent flooding has 
become concerned about the overgrown weeds, trees, and debris that has accumulated over 
time.  She stated she was also curious whether the City had any plans to add more 
developments to this section of the City since that would ultimately start encroaching on her 
street, and she is not interested in moving or selling her home. 
 

Mayor Crow informed Ms. Bonds that the City Manager or a member of his staff would contact her 
with answers to her questions. 

 
Carolyn Horth, 1135 Burch Lane, U City, MO 
Ms. Horth stated it seems as though the only communication residents in many of the flooded 
areas have received is through the media.  There has been no communication from the City, 
and the list she and her neighbors were provided about the 24 homes being bought out on 
Burch appears to be incorrect.  She stated everyone has been left in limbo wondering why more 
homes were not included; whether they will be forced to reside on a street with only three 
neighbors, or simply what they should do next.  So, when should they anticipate receiving 
accurate information about the buyouts and the process that will occur thereafter? 
 She stated two other pet peeves are the tax abatement that's being handed out and the 
plan to either move or replace City Hall.  Ms. Horth stated she understands there is supposed to 
be a balance between the abatement and the increased revenue that a business brings in, but 
the City also has to pay for any infrastructure needed to sustain that development; which means 
that residents may not be getting a significant bang for their bucks.  So perhaps, there is a need 
to be a little more cautious about utilizing this strategy. 
 City Hall is absolutely gorgeous, and she thinks the City should do all that it can to 
maintain its historic value rather than tearing it down or leaving it to sit vacantly.  And there is 
also a project on Delmar towards Skinker that she would like to get more information about.     
 Ms. Horth thanked Council for all of the work they perform and vowed to become more 
involved in the things that are going on in her community. 
 

Mayor Crow informed Ms. Horth that Dr. Wagner would be in contact with her to answer questions 
regarding the buyouts.  However, there is no movement today or in the foreseeable future to 
abandon City Hall, and in fact, monies have been set aside to help maintain its historic value.  He 
stated it is Council's desire to relocate the Police Department from the temporary trailers they 
currently reside in, into a permanent home, which will be located in the Annex sitting behind City 
Hall.   
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Easement Vacation – Public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive 

 
Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:41 p.m., and after acknowledging that there were no 
written comments or requests to speak, the hearing was closed at 6:41 p.m. 
 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Ground Emergency Medical Transportation (GEMT) Renewal Contract 
2. MS Office 365 Renewal (SHI Inc.) 
3. Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) Tree Removal & Replacement Contract 
4. Leaf Collection Contract 
5. Cochran Engineering Supplement Agreement – Groby (STP) Project  
6. Groby 2025 STP Grant Application 
 

Councilmember Cusick moved to approve Items 1 through 6 on the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT - (vote required) 
1. Employee Recognition Awards (Flood Relief Efforts) 

Mr. Rose asked that the Mayor and Council recognize those employees that exceeded the 
City's expectations in the performance of their duties during and after the historic flood on 
July 26th.  He then asked the Director of Human Resources, Amy Williams, if she would 
facilitate these recognitions. 

 
Ms. Williams stated although tonight's recognitions are focused on the events associated with the 
flood, the City conducted an employee luncheon celebrating every member of staff.   
 All of these teams went above and beyond to bring normalcy back to the City, and the 
attention given to every aspect of their job is greatly appreciated. 
 
Facilities and IT Departments - Nominated by Dawn Beasley and presented by Brooke Smith, 
Deputy City Manager and Director of Economic Development. 

1. Daniel Carter 
2. Jim Burkemper 
3. Bernard, Steven 
4. Michael Green 
5. Ricky Bisch 
6. Ricky Chambers 
7. Antonio “Tony” Bracy 
8. Mike Carlin - Received numerous nominations for his tireless efforts to ensure continued 

successful operations of the teams during very chaotic times. 
 
Planning and Development – Nominated by Tim Scott and Presented by Director John Wagner. 
Code Compliance/Property Maintenance Division 

1. Dennis Stringfield 
2. Jim Blizzard 
3. Rachel White 
4. Ebony Haggins 
5. Mike Luong 
6. Cherie Young 
7. Tim Scott – Nominated by John Wagner 

Front Office Clerical Staff 
1. Barbara Mathis 
2. Ronda Young 
3. Cynthia Zumwalt 
 

 

E - 2 - 3



Police Department - Nominated by UCPD Management Team and Presented by Chief Larry 
Hampton 
Dispatchers on Duty:  

1. Janai Clabon  
2. Cassandra Reed  
3. Chantel Trevino  
4. Dashauna Price  
5. Robyn McIntosh  

Officers on Duty:  
1. Lt. Jesse Meinhardt  
2. Sgt. Reginald Hope  
3. PO Thomas Carney; (Retired)  
4. PO Theodore Jackson  
5. PO Rolandis Woodland  
6. PO Joshua Mosley  
7. PO Louis Bruno  
8. PO Kim Douglas 
9. PO Joshua Stigers 
10. PO Anthony Bradley 

Officers that Assisted: 
1. Sgt. Lott 
2. Po David Colp 
3. Jeremiah Belcher 
4. Jake Goldstein 
5. Kyle Giamanco 
6. Justin Donaldson 
7. Jamesha Howard 
8. Kelly Ricketts  
9. Stephen Jones 

 
Finance Department  

1. Represented by Assistant Director, Paula Battle 
 
 Fire Department – Presented by Chief Bill Hinson  

1. Battalion Chief Joel Myers 
2. Captain William Gruendler 
3. Captain James Cage 
4. Pvt. Tim Hughes 
5. Pvt. Robert Herrick 
6. Pvt. Taylor Jordan 
7. Pvt. Maurice Williams 
8. Pvt. Aaron Moon 
9. Pvt. Zachary Heberlie 
10. Pvt. Richard Black 
11. Pvt. Ryan Dorsey 
12. Pvt. Joshua Wilson 
13. Deputy Chief Gary Wilmoth 
14. Deputy Chief Fred Kramer 

 
 
 
 

E - 2 - 4



Public Works, Parks, Recreation, and Forestry – Presented by Darren Dunkle 
Streets Division  

1. John Gates 
2. Ron Dade 
3. Josh Dewitt 
4. Lisa Johnson 
5. Anthony Poke 
6. Jeff Suttle 
7. Jeff Douglas 
8. Daryn Stewart 

Front Office  
1. D’Marco Williams 
2. Todd Strubhart 

Sanitation – Heavy and Light Equipment Operators 
1. Dennis Luckett 
2. Chris Connor 
3. John Houston 
4. Orlando Bolden 
5. John Brown 
6. Antoine Cotton 
7. Rama Ensley 
8. Steven Green 
9. Maurice Posley 
10. Walter Wilkins 
11. Shaunee Blanks 

Parks, Recreation, and Forestry 
1. Todd Strubhart - Deputy Director of Parks Maintenance & Operations 
2. Mike Warmbold - Supervisor of Park Operations 
3. Janet Carter 
4. Tom Brushwood 
5. Jacob Kaiser 
6. Allen Hopkins 
7. Richard Cullins 
8. Mike Warmbold 
9. Rick Green                                      
10. Dwayne Reid 
11. Brian Strautmann 
12. Don Ryan 
13. Mike Murphy 
14. Mike Lavender 
15. Zach Gant 
16. Juan Taylor 
17. Brandin Williamson 

 
Mr. Rose concluded by acknowledging the importance of having a team effort to provide these 
high-quality services and noted his appreciation for all of the work his staff performs. 
 
Mayor Crow thanked each employee, as well as their families, for the sacrifices made and 
dedication to keeping this City safe. 

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

  None 
 
 

E - 2 - 5



M. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions - (vote required) 
 

1. Res 2022-12 – Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget Amendment #4 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the 
motion was carried unanimously. 
 

Bills - (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
 
Introduced by Councilman Cusick 

2. Bill 9487 - AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC 
WALKWAYBETWEEN 511 and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE.  Bill Number 9487 was read for the 
first time. 

 
  Introduced by Councilman Smotherson  

3. Bill 9488 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PHASE II 
OF THE PROPOSED MARKET AT OLIVE DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 8630 OLIVE 
BOULEVARD.  Bill Number 9488 was read for the first time. 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Aren Ginsberg, 430 West Point Court, U City, MO 
Ms. Ginsberg stated that TNR volunteers partnered with Op-Spot and the Green Center on 
Sunday, October 2nd, to host this year's Pet Vaccination Clinic.  The Clinic provided: 

•  31 rabies shots;  
•  St. Louis County tags and Certificates of Vaccination for $15.00;  
•  22 Canine and Feline Distemper Shots, and 
•  6 microchips 

 
Ms. Ginsberg stated TNR volunteers remain busy trapping, neutering, and vaccinating 
community cats at no cost, and they have coordinated with local rescues helping more than 70 
cats get adopted.  But unfortunately, community cat food, water, and shelter continue to spark 
misunderstandings with the City's Code Enforcement.  Therefore, they would respectfully 
request that Section 210.130 of the Municipal Code be amended to add food, water, and shelter 
to the list of permitted acts.  
  

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember McMahon moved to adjourn the meeting, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, 
and the motion was carried unanimously. 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m. 

 
 
 

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 2 - 6



From: Carolkay Horth
To: Council Comments Shared
Subject: City Priorities---
Date: Friday, October 7, 2022 10:35:34 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

City Hall remodeling-- not a priority

Tax Abatement--Needs to stop

Delmar-east- redevelopment into what? City Money$$ How Much$$ Return on
investment$$$???

Flooded Residence----300 Homes initially-then 24 --the more--
:List made public without being complete---Incompetent--

Carol K. Horth
1135 Burch Lane

E - 2 - 7

mailto:carolkayhorth@gmail.com
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


E - 2 - 8



J - 1 - 1



City of University City Council Meeting
Agenda Item - Addendum (October 24, 2022)

Subject/Title:
Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding

Description Amount

Chevy Silverado HD 2500 Pickup Truck 51,324.00     
Compact Utility Tractor w/ Snow Blade Attachment 39,372.90     
Utility Vehicle w/ Snow Blade Attachment 29,357.82     

120,054.72   

J - 1 - 2



City of University City Council Meeting
Agenda Item - Addendum (September 27, 2022)

Subject/Title:
Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding

Description Amount

25 Yd. Leaf Vacuum Trailer 94,946.30     

94,946.30     

J - 1 - 3



City of University City Council Meeting
Agenda Item - Addendum (September 12, 2022)

Subject/Title:
Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding

New Original
Description Amount Costs Costs

Leach 8 Cubic Yard Mini Rear Curved Rear Load
  Refuse (Trash) Truck 205,362.20     
Dodge Ram 2500 Pickup Trucks 4x4 Crew Cab 8ft bd 51,740.00       
Dodge Ram 2500 Pickup Trucks 4x4 Crew Cab 8ft bd 51,740.00       
Compact Utility Tractor with Backhoe Attachment 3,295.60         54,534.65      51,239.05    
John Deere Z930M Ztrak Front End Mowers (2) - Street 
Dept; John Deere Z960M Ztrak Front End Mowers (3) - 
Parks Dept 1,522.96         63,277.56      61,754.60    
John Deere 1570 Terrain Cut Front End Mowers with 
Snow Blade (2) 14,469.75       75,536.66      61,066.91    
John Deere W48R Walk Behind Mowers (Deleted) -                   (13,088.46)    13,088.46    
John Deere W48R Commercial Walk Behind Mower 7,116.11         
Chevy Silverado 2500HD - Parks 52,514.00       
Chevy Silverado 2500HD - Parks / Service Truck 60,314.00       
Chevy Silverado 2500HD - Parks 52,914.00       
Chevy Silverado 2500HD - Streets 52,914.00       
Chevy Silverado 2500HD - Streets 52,914.00       

606,816.62     

J - 1 - 4



City of University City Council Meeting
Agenda Item - Addendum (August 22, 2022)

Subject/Title:
Ratification of Emergency Purchases due to Flooding

Description Amount

F-250 Super Cab Long Bed 4WD -                  Removed 48,975.00     
F-250 Crew Cab Long Bed 2WD -                  Removed 46,390.00     
F-250 Super Duty Regular Cab Long Bed 4WD -                  Removed 46,430.00     
F-450 One Ton Dump Truck Diesel 9ft Dump 69,660.00      
F-550 One Ton Dump Truck 7.3 L Gas 11ft Dump 67,658.00      
F-550 One Ton Dump Truck 7.3 L Gas 11ft Dump 66,158.00      
Chevy Pickup Truck K2500 -                  Removed 54,097.00     
GMC Pickup Truck K2500 HD -                  Removed 54,234.00     
Compact Utility Tractor with Backhoe Attachment 51,239.05      54534.65 3,295.60        
John Deere Z930M Ztrak Front End Mowers (2) - Street 
Dept; John Deere Z960M Ztrak Front End Mowers (3) - 
Parks Dept 61,754.60      63277.56 1,522.96        
John Deere 1570 Terrain Cut Front End Mowers with 
Snow Blade (2) 61,066.91      75536.66 14,469.75     
Street Sweeper 244,138.80    
Gym Floor Removal - Supplemental Agreement 57,327.21      
John Deere W48R Walk Behind Mowers (2) 13,088.46      (13,088.46)    
Honda HRN216VYA Push Mowers (2) 1,132.00        
FH1 Battery Backup (1) 2,800.00        
F-150 3/4 Ton P/U 8 ft Bed 45,193.99      Added
Chevy Silverado 3/4 Ton P/U 8 ft Bed 42,698.42      Added

783,915.44    

J - 1 - 5



J - 1 - 6



J - 1 - 7



J - 1 - 8



J - 1 - 9



J - 1 - 10



J - 1 - 11



J - 1 - 12



J - 1 - 13



J - 1 - 14



J - 1 - 15



J - 1 - 16



J - 1 - 17



J - 1 - 18



J - 2 - 1 



2023 AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING SERVICES 
UNIVERSITY CITY  

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 

2022, by and between Central County Emergency 9ll Dispatching Center (“Central 

County”) and the City of University City (“City”). 

WHEREAS, Central County is organized and operated pursuant to Chapter 70 and 

Section 321.245 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri for the purpose of providing 

centralized emergency dispatching service for the receipt and transmission of emergency 

calls (alarms); and, 

WHEREAS, City is a Missouri city which is authorized to provide fire suppression 

and emergency service and is likewise authorized to do all those things necessary and 

incidental thereto; and, 

WHEREAS, City is desirous of entering into an agreement with Central County as 

a service contractor in order to provide to its constituency efficient communication and to 

manage emergency calls; and, 

WHEREAS, City deems it in the best interest and welfare of the inhabitants within 

its boundaries to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of obtaining emergency 

dispatching service; and, 

WHEREAS, City wishes to become a Service Contractor with Central County.    

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants of the 

parties, it is hereby mutually agreed as follows: 

J - 2 - 2 



 1. Central County shall provide and maintain suitable quarters, personnel, and 

equipment so as to meet the requirements and specifications of a dispatching center as set 

out in Section 321.245 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. 

 2. Central County will dispatch fire alarms and emergency calls to the City in 

accordance with the instructions of City or its contractor, provided the same are reasonable 

and feasible within the established procedures, bylaws, and other Agreements controlling 

the operation of Central County. 

 3.  City shall, at its own expense or at the expense of its contractor:  furnish to 

Central County such GPS data and mapping data to allow Central County to operate its 

computer aided dispatch system for City, and advise Central County of the means by which 

City’s equipment is to be dispatched and the manner by which each alarm is to be struck.  

This data shall be in a digital format compatible with Central County’s data system; data 

shall include, but not be limited to, streets, intersections, speed limits, lot parcels, left and 

right segment numerics and any such ancillary data that would enhance the mapping data, 

and to provide regular upgrades and corrections to the aforesaid data.  The City or its 

contractor shall be responsible for arranging any changes or additions that are to be made 

to the GPS data, and mapping data, and to special operating procedures. 

 4. As a Service Contractor, City shall pay to Central County annually: 

A. for 2023 two and ninety-two cents ($0.0292) (which is 5/6 the normal 3.5 cents 

because services begin on March 1, 2023); 

B. for 2024 three and one-half cents ($0.035); 

J - 2 - 3 



C. for 2025 three and six tenths cents ($.036); 

D. for 2026 three and seven tenths cents ($.037); and, 

E. for 2027 three and seventy-five hundredths cents ($.0375); 

 per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the total assessed valuation of the City, including 

any land for which the City is obligated or contracted to provide fire or ambulance services, 

for the preceding year for each year during which dispatching service is to be rendered to 

City by Central County.  The formula to determine the assessment is: 

 a. Add the assessed valuation of the real estate tax (all Forms), the personal 

property tax (all Forms), and the railroads’, surtax, and utilities’ tax (as determined not 

later than November 1 of the preceding year each year) as assessed by, in, or for City and 

for any lands the City is obligated to provide fire or ambulance services.  However, for any 

Tax Increment Financing project, the assessed valuation for such project, for the 

calculation of annual payments, shall equal the pre-TIF property valuation plus the 

percentage of full property valuation of such project for which City receives property taxes. 

 b.  Multiply the said sum by the appropriate factor set forth above in ¶4(A, B, 

C, D, and E) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the total assessed valuation for the year 

preceding each year of service.  The product shall be deemed to be the regular annual 

assessment of City.   

 c. The amount of the regular assessment for each year, as determined above, 

shall be paid to Central County in two (2) equal payments with one-half (½) of the total 

J - 2 - 4 



payment due to be paid by March 1 and the remaining half (½) of the total payment due by 

July 1 for each year Central County is providing dispatch services to the City. 

 5. City shall not be liable for any special assessments to Central County.  City 

shall, however reimburse Central County for any and all expense advances by Central 

County for the account of City or for any other reimbursable expenses incurred by Central 

County for City’s benefit. 

 6. City, as a service contractor, shall have no financial interest in the assets of 

Central County, nor shall City be eligible to accumulate any interest in the same under the 

terms of this contract, or upon any other basis unless otherwise expressly agreed by the 

parties in writing. 

7. City agrees and promises that it has no and shall have no ownership interest 

in Central County.  City will not be entitled to accumulate any interest in the ownership, 

assets or governance of Central County as a result of this Agreement or its performance.  

City is not a “Participating Entity” as that term is defined in Central County’s Operating 

Agreement, and City agrees that it shall not be entitled to become a Participating Entity 

under the terms or performance of this Agreement.  City understands that it is not entitled 

to a position on the Board of Directors of Central County.   

 8. Central County, during the effective period of this Agreement, shall provide 

City with equipment (including communications and computers) in the same manner as 

provided for other non-Participating Entities or Service Contractors for whom Central 

County performs dispatching services. However, any such equipment provided by Central 

County to City shall remain the sole and exclusive property of Central County.  It is agreed 

J - 2 - 5 



that upon termination of this Agreement, City will promptly return to Central County any 

and all equipment furnished to City by Central County. 

 9. Central County shall make available to City use and access to the 853 

Account Fund in the same manner as provided to other entities for which Central County 

furnishes dispatching services. 

 10. Paragraph 10 is deliberately left blank.      

 11. City may attend and express its position at all open meetings, both regular 

and special, of the Board of Directors of Central County; however, representatives of City 

shall have no vote in any matter that may come before the Board of Directors.   

 12. The Fire Chief of the City, or his/her representative, may attend and 

participate at all meetings both regular and special of the Operating Committee as set forth 

in the Operating Committee Bylaws which may be amended from time to time.  

 13. If either party fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder or breaches 

any of its representations, warranties, promises or covenants, and if upon thirty (30) days 

written notice the party failing to perform does not correct its default, then the other party, 

at is option, may terminate this Agreement.  In addition to the rights and remedies provided 

herein (none of which is exclusive), each party shall have any other right or remedy allowed 

at law or equity, by statute or otherwise, including without limiting the right to enjoin any 

breach or threatened breach of any covenants, agreements, terms or conditions of this 

Agreement. 

J - 2 - 6 



 14. This Agreement and its obligations shall go into effect, and Central County 

shall begin to provide dispatch services to City at 00:00:01 hours on March 1, 2023, and 

end at 23:59:59 hours on December 31, 2027. This Agreement shall automatically renew 

for 2028 and thereafter, at the last assessment rate set forth in ¶4E, on an annual basis 

beginning January 1 of each following year, unless proper written notice to terminate is 

given by party wishing to terminate or not renew at least one-hundred eighty (180) days 

prior to January 1 of each renewal year, and provided further that such contract has not 

been earlier terminated by a breach thereof.   For purposes of this Agreement, written notice 

is proper if placed in the United States mail, certified or registered, and addressed to the 

last known address of the terminated party.   

15.  City acknowledges that it has received and reviewed all bylaws, operating 

agreements, and each and every other document governing Central County and, where 

applicable, agrees to abide by and be bound by same. 

16. This Paragraph Deliberately Left Blank. 

17. This Agreement is a complete expression of the parties’ agreement and may 

only be amended or modified or supplemented by a written agreement signed by both 

parties. 

18. Both parties to this Agreement agree that they have properly authorized and 

approved this Agreement according to Missouri law. 

19. This Agreement and its interpretation shall be governed by Missouri law.  

Any action arising out of, or concerning, this agreement shall be brought only in the Circuit 

J - 2 - 7 



Court of St. Louis County, Missouri.  All parties to this agreement consent to the 

jurisdiction and venue of that court. 

20.  In the event any provisions of this agreement is invalid or unenforceable, 

such invalid or unenforceable provision shall not invalidate or affect the other provisions 

of this Agreement which shall remain in effect and be construed as if such provision were 

not a part of thereof  provided that if the invalidation or unenforceability of such provision 

shall, in the opinion of either party to the Agreement, have a material effect on such party’s 

rights or obligations under this agreement, then the Agreement may be terminated by either 

party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice by such party to the other party. 

21. By entering into this Agreement, the parties agree that the Agreement is not 

intended to, nor does it, a) create any rights in any individuals or entities who are not 

parties hereto; or b) act as a waiver of any immunities or defenses that the parties enjoy 

under Missouri law except as specifically provided herein. 

 

CENTRAL COUNTY EMERGENCY 911  CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  
 DISPATCHING CENTER   MISSOURI 

 
 
By_____________________________ By_________________________________  

Name___________________________ Name_______________________________  

Title____________________________ Title________________________________ 

Date____________________________ Date________________________________ 

J - 2 - 8 



J - 3 - 1



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 

11/21 SECTION 1.6 

CONTRACT 

1 of 3 

CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the   day of  , 21 , by and between 

City of University City, MISSOURI (hereinafter called the CITY) and Pride Master, Inc.,  a Missouri Company 

with offices at 16632 Old Chesterfield Rd., Chesterfield, MO 63017 (herein after called the CONTRACTOR), 

WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY intends to construct improvements for Project No. 1484 – Asphalt 

Overlay Improvements, hereinafter called the PROJECT, in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications 

and Contract Documents prepared by the City of University City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The OWNER and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 

THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools and services 
necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for the construction of the 
PROJECT, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which are hereby made a 
part of the Contract. 

a. Contract Time: Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to Proceed, and
shall be completed within thirty (30) calendar days of the authorization date in the Notice to Proceed.

b. Liquidated Damages: The Contractor hereby expressly agrees to pay the City the sum of Two Hundred
Dollars ($200.00) per day for each and every day, Sundays and legal holidays only excepted, after
calendar days have expired during or upon which said work or any part thereof remains incomplete and
unfinished.

c. Subcontractors: The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the Contract
Documents. The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any contractual relation
between any subcontractor and the City. No sub-contractor shall further subcontract any of his work.

THE CITY AGREES to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the performance
of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal, which is: 

One Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Ninety-Nine Cents. 

($132,567.99)   

Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities constructed as verified by the Engineer and in 
accordance with the unit prices set out in the Proposal. 

(See following pages) 

J - 3 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI  

11/21 SECTION 1.6 

CONTRACT 

2 of 3 

 

 

 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

 

The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein and the Drawings. In the event that 
any provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, the 
provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated: 

 
A. Contract (This Instrument) 
B. Addenda to Contract Documents 
C. Conditions of the Contract 
D. Remaining Legal and Procedural Documents 

1. Proposal 
2. Instruction to Bidders 
3. Invitation for Bids 

E. Special Provisions 
F. Annual Wage Order 
G. Standard Specifications 
H. Drawings/Location Maps 
I. General Provisions 
J. Bonds/Attachments 

1. Performance/Payment Bond 
2. Bid Bond 

 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE ENGINEER: 

 

All work shall be done under the general inspection of the Engineer. The Engineer shall decide any 
and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished, work performed, 
rate of progress of work, interpretations of Drawings and Specifications and all questions as to the 
acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the Contractor. 

 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  

 

This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
Owner and Contractor respectively and his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives. Neither 
the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or sublet his interests or obligation 
hereunder without consent of the other party. 

J - 3 - 3



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI  

11/21 SECTION 1.6 

CONTRACT 

3 of 3 

 

 

 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. IN 

WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 

 
 
(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

Title: _______________________________________________________________ 

  

By (signature): _______________________________________________________  

 

Contractor (print): ______________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ___________________________________________ 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

By: _____________________________             

                   City Clerk 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

Date: __________________________                                                     

 

 

J - 3 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI  

11/21 SECTION 1.6 

CONTRACT 

4 of 3 

 

 

         

 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY              CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________   By: ________________                                                                                                                                                          

                   City Attorney     City Manager 

 

Date: __________________________   Date: __________________________ 

                                                                                               

 

J - 3 - 5



J - 3 - 6



J - 3 - 7



J - 3 - 8



J - 3 - 9



J - 3 - 10



J - 3 - 11



J - 3 - 12



J - 3 - 13



J - 3 - 14



J - 3 - 15



J - 3 - 16



J - 3 - 17



J - 3 - 18



J - 3 - 19



J - 3 - 20



J - 3 - 21



J - 3 - 22



J - 3 - 23



J - 3 - 24



J - 3 - 25



J - 3 - 26



J - 3 - 27



J - 3 - 28



J - 3 - 29



J - 3 - 30



J - 3 - 31



J - 3 - 32



J - 3 - 33



J - 3 - 34



CDBG 2019 Sidewalk and Curb Improvements

University City, Missouri

PWST19-1490

SC22-1417

September 20, 2022

1 Mobilization LS 1 $3,175.00 $3,175.00

2 Traffic Control LS 1 $1,075.00 $1,075.00

3 Asphalt Patch (BP-2) and Concrete Infill for Curb SF 154 $9.65 $1,486.10

4
Concrete Approach, 6" 
(Remove and Replace, includes aggregate base)

SF 2,494 $15.56 $38,806.64

5
Concrete Rolled Curb and Gutter, 30" 
(Remove and Replace, includes aggregate base)

LF 160 $31.65 $5,064.00

6
Concrete Sidewalk, 4" 
(Remove and Replace, includes aggregate base)

SF 6,575 $10.60 $69,695.00

7
Concrete Sidewalk with Integral Curb 
(Remove and Replace, includes aggregate base)

SF 325 $12.95 $4,208.75

8
Concrete Curb Ramp, 7" 
(Remove and Replace, includes aggregate base)

SF 325 $16.90 $5,492.50

9 Truncated Domes SF 80 $5.00 $400.00

10 Restoration (Backfill, Grading, Seeding, Mulching & Fertilization) LS 1 $3,165.00 $3,165.00

$132,567.99

Pride Master Inc.

Unit Cost Extended Cost

Total Base Bid

Project Name:

Sponsor:

City #:

Cochran #:

Bid Date:

Quantity
Bid
No.

Description Unit

J - 3 - 35



J - 3 - 36



J - 4 - 1



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI   Tree Removal Project 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 1 of 3 
CONTRACT 

CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ______ day of _________________ , 20___, by and 
between The City of University City, MISSOURI (here in after called the CITY) and Monster 
Tree Service, a Missouri Company with offices at 2104 S. Warson Road, St. Louis, MO 63124 
(herein after called the CONTRACTOR), WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY intends to 
proceed with Project No. PRF23-02 – Tree Removal Project, hereinafter called the PROJECT, 
in accordance with the Specifications and Contract Documents prepared by the City of 
University City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 

THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools 
and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for 
the PROJECT, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which are 
hereby made a part of the Contract. 

a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to
Proceed and shall be completed within thirty (90) calendar days of the authorization date in
the Notice to Proceed.

b. Liquidated Damages: The Contractor hereby expressly agrees to pay the City the sum of
two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for each and every day, Sundays and legal holidays
only excepted, after calendar days have expired during or upon which said work, or any part
thereof remains incomplete and unfinished.

c. Subcontractors: The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the
Contract Documents. The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any
contractual relation between any subcontractor and the City.  No subcontractor shall further
subcontract any of their work.

THE CITY AGREES to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the 
performance of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal, which is: 

One Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Eight Hundred Six Dollars 

($124,806.00  ) NUMBERS 

Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities/services provided as verified by the 
Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry and in accordance with the unit prices set out in the 
Proposal. 

J - 4 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI                Tree Removal Project 
 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 2 of 3 
 CONTRACT 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein.  In the event that any 
provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, 
the provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise 
specifically stated: 
 

A. Contract (This Instrument) 
B. Addenda to Contract Documents 
C. Conditions of the Contract 
D. Remaining Legal and Procedural Documents 

1. Proposal 
2. Instruction to Bidders 
3. Invitation for Bids 

E. Job Special Provisions 
F. Bonds/Attachments 

1. Bid Bond 
 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARKS, RECREATION AND FORESTRY 
DIRECTOR: 
 
All work shall be done under the general inspection of the Director of Parks, Recreation and 
Forestry or his designee.  The Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry or his designee shall 
decide any and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials 
furnished, work performed, and rate of progress of work, interpretations of specifications and all 
questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the Contractor. 
 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 
This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the City and Contractor respectively and their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives.  Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or 
sublet their interests or obligation hereunder without consent of the other party. 
 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________ 
  
By (signature): _______________________________________________________  
 

J - 4 - 3



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  MISSOURI                Tree Removal Project 
 

9/22 SECTION 1.6 3 of 3 
 CONTRACT 
 

Contractor (print): ______________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________________________ 
 
                   
 
       
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY                
 
 
 
By: ____________________________                                                                                                                                                           
                   City Manager        
 
Date: __________________________     
                                                                                               

J - 4 - 4



TREE REMOVAL PROJECT 

BID TABULATION 10/11/22 

 
Company 

 

 
Total Bid  

 
Bid Bond 

 Monster Tree Service $181,634.00 X 
 

 Gamma Tree Experts $197,670.00 X 
 

 Omni Tree Service 
  

$202,800.00  X 

  
 

 

 
  

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 

THE CITY INTENDS TO AWARD THE BID TO THE MOST RESPONSIVE, RESPONSIBLE BIDDER SUBMITTING THE LOWEST BEST BID.  
THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY AND ALL BIDS, AND TO WAIVE ANY IRREGULARITIES IN THE BEST INTEREST OF 

THE CITY. 

J - 4 - 5



www.ucitymo.org 
 

   Department of Public Works and Parks 
  6801 Delmar Boulevard, 3rd Floor, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8619, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

 

 

Recommendation 

Hazardous Tree Removal PRF23-02  
 
To: Darren Dunkle-Deputy Director of Parks and Forestry 
 
From: Jacob Kaiser- Forestry Supervisor 
 
 
I am recommending that Monster Tree Service be granted the Hazardous Tree 

Removal contract with the items below removed from the base bid.  

Item Description Total  

2 961 Abbeville Dr 900 

3 7724 Ahern ave 900 

8 7700 Amherst 900 

10 8543 Appleton dr 1800 

11 7401 Balson ave 1350 

13 7316 Balson Ave 990 

17 858 Berick ave 1620 

21 8025 Blackberry ave 990 

27 8607 Brookshire Ln 810 

31 7350 Chamberlain ave 1440 

32 6301 Clemens ave 990 

36 7601 Cornell ave 1080 

39 8342 Delcrest Dr 1260 

40 8501 Delmar Blvd 1170 

41 8501 Delmar Blvd 1170 

42 8501 Delmar Blvd 900 

43 7331 Dorset ave 630 

45 6275 Enright ave 630 

48 1429 Forest Green Ct 1350 

50 933 Gay ave 900 

52 900 Jeanerette dr 990 

57 7124 Kingsbury Blvd 900 

59 894 Leland ave 540 

60 876 Leland ave 1080 

64 166 Linden ave 1170 

65 230 Linden ave 945 

85 1524 N Jackson ave 1170 

86 970 N Jackson ave 945 

J - 4 - 6



www.ucitymo.org 
 

89 7578 Olive Blvd 540 

90 8341 Olive Blvd 720 

91 8319 Olive Blvd 1080 

93 8322 Orchard ave 900 

37 7122 Pershing ave 990 

101 8411 Richard ave 900 

106 7900 Stanford ave 1800 

107 8435 Stanford ave 2053 

111 712 Swarthmore ln 2143 

115 7310 Tulane ave 1558 

116 8112 Tulane ave 1513 

122 365 W Point Ct 1513 

123 1227 Waldron ave 2503 

124 6808 Wahsington ave 1513 

126 7201 Westmoreland dr 2143 

127 7211 Westmoreland dr 1963 

128 7106 Westmoreland dr 1918 

129 1060 Wilson ave 1558 

      

  Total Dollar Amount Removed 56828 

      

  Total Contract Price After Items Removed 124806 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

J - 4 - 7





K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 2 - 1



1 

IMPACT  ANALYSIS 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
DIERBERGS PROJECT 

October 19, 2022 

K - 2 - 2



Impact Analysis 

Table of Contents 

Section/Sub-Section Title Page Number 

Section 1 Introduction 

 Project Description  ......................................................................................................... 2 

Table 1 – Personal Property and Commercial Surcharge Impact Summary .................... 2 

Table 2 – Sales/Use Tax Summary .................................................................................. 4 

Section 2          Impact Analysis 

      Table 3 – Personal Property Tax Impact .......................................................................... 6 

      Table 4 – Commercial Surcharge Impact  ........................................................................ 7 

Section 3 Conditions and Assumptions 

Conditions and Assumptions  ........................................................................................... 8 

K - 2 - 3



Impact Analysis 

SECTION 1 

INTRODUCTION 

CITY  OF  UNIVERSITY  CITY  –  OLIVE  BOULEVARD  COMMERCIAL  CORRIDOR  &  RESIDENTIAL 

CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT AREA – RPA 1 

The projections provided in this Impact Analysis outline the financial impact of developing a Dierbergs 

supermarket along with two out‐parcels and equating the impact for the City of University City, Missouri 

(the  “City”)  and  the  University  City  School  District  (the  “School  District”).    The  parcels  under 

consideration are included within the Olive Boulevard Commercial Corridor & Residential Conservation 

Redevelopment  Area  –  RPA1  (the  “TIF”).    The  TIF  captures  certain  new  incremental  tax  revenues 

resulting from the projects that are deposited into a Special Allocation Fund and used to reimburse the 

developer for TIF approved project costs.  Monies deposited into the special allocation fund include all 

local  real  property  tax  revenues  and  50%  of  local  economic  activity  taxes  (EATS) which  primarily 

represent sales tax revenues.  The TIF is already in place and as a result, local taxing jurisdictions do not 

receive these new taxes. Therefore, this Impact Analysis provides an estimate of tax revenue changes 

not  already  captured  by  the  TIF,  should  a  Missouri  Chapter  100  be  put  implemented  for  this 

development. 

There are two tax revenues impacted by a Missouri Chapter 100 that are not captured within a TIF.  The 

first is personal property tax.  Personal property tax is not included in the tax revenues redirected into 

the Special Allocation Fund for TIF.  The second revenue stream is the Commercial Surcharge, which is 

excluded as a TIF revenue. 

This Impact Analysis provides an estimate of the new tax revenue values resulting for the City and the 

School District.   Table 1 demonstrates the personal property and commercial surcharge tax  impacts.  

The impacts are based on those tax revenues not already incentivized via the TIF. 

Table 1 – Personal Property & Commercial Surcharge Impact Summary 

Impacts were  further analyzed by  estimating what a  typical big box  contribution would  equate  to 

instead of a Dierbergs supermarket.  The comparative analysis shows the impact of a Dierbergs is double 

that  of  a  standard  big  box  development  due  to  the  additional  anticipated  personal  property 

investments. 

The commercial surcharge is not an allowable revenue source for capture within TIF.  The commercial 

surcharge is $1.70 per $100 of equalized assessed value of commercial real property.  The allocation of 

the $1.70 is based on distribution percent factors, established by St. Louis County.    The factors for the 

City and School District are calculated in Table 1 above.  The impact is negligible. 

Personal 

Property Tax

Commercial 

Surcharge Total Impact

City of University City 32,010$              68$                       32,078$              

University City School District 216,587$            11,305$               227,891$            

2

K - 2 - 4



Impact Analysis 

Sales / Use Tax 

To implement the Project, the City will purchase, or cause to be purchased, the qualified building 

materials necessary to construct the Project  Improvements.   As a result, those purchases will be 

exempt  from  sales  tax pursuant  to  the Act.    In addition,  the purchase and  lease of  the Project 

Equipment may be exempt from sales tax pursuant to Section 144.054 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended, if approved by the Missouri Department of Economic Development. 

For purposes of determining the impact of the sales tax exemption on the affected taxing districts, 

it was assumed that: 

(a) The applicable  sales  tax  rate  is 10.2380%, of which 4.225%  is allocated  to  the State,

2.5130%  to  the  County,  2.500%  to  the  City,  and  1.000%  to  The Markets  at  Olive  Community 

Improvement District (CID);  

(b) The  estimated  direct  costs  of  the  project  are  $8,855,100.    Approximately  thirty‐five

percent of the hard costs, $3,099,285, were allocated as taxable construction materials.  None of 

the construction material purchases would otherwise be subject to City sales taxes, approximately 

twenty‐five percent  (25%) of  the construction material purchases would otherwise be subject  to 

County sales taxes, and approximately one‐hundred percent  (100%) of the construction material 

purchases would otherwise be subject to State sales and use taxes; and 

(c) For purposes of determining the impact of the Project Equipment sales tax exemption,

we have assumed the furnishings, furniture and equipment will be taxed as thirty‐five percent (35%) 

of  the  cost was allocated as  taxable purchases and approximately  sixty‐five percent  (65%) was 

determined  to be non‐taxable as a  result of  costs associated with  labor,  installation, and other 

charges for which sales taxes do not apply.  It is estimated that no Project Equipment purchases will 

occur within the City or County and with a Missouri use tax being applied to the Project Equipment 

purchases. 

Any variance to the numbers stated above will alter the net fiscal impact of the sales tax exemption 

on  the affected  taxing districts; however, based upon  these assumptions and estimates,  the net 

fiscal impact of the sales/use tax exemption is approximately $373,124 and is allocated as follows: 

3

K - 2 - 5



Impact Analysis 

Table 2 – Sales/Use Tax Estimates 

Table 3:  Sales/Use Tax Estimates  

% Acquired in 

Jurisidiction

Construction 

Materials
% Acquired in 

Jurisidiction

Project 

Equipment Total

State of Missouri 100% 130,945$       100% 222,708$      353,653$     

St. Louis County 25% 19,471$      0% ‐$      19,471$      

City of University City 0% ‐$      0% ‐$      ‐$      

The Markets at Olive CID 0% ‐$      0% ‐$      ‐$      

TOTALS 150,416$       222,708$      373,124$     

4

K - 2 - 6



Impact Analysis 

SECTION 2 

Impact Analysis 

5

K - 2 - 7



1 

Table 3 – Personal Property Tax Impact 

Personal Property Tax Impact‐Dierbergs Project

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Equalized Assessed Value of Personal Property 1,568,711$         1,232,594$         968,521$       753,283$       538,053$       322,883$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$      

Total Personal Property Tax 150,228$             118,039$             92,750$         72,138$         51,527$         30,921$         16,825$         16,825$         16,825$         16,825$        

50% 75,114$               59,020$               46,375$         36,069$         25,763$         15,460$         8,412$           8,412$           8,412$           8,412$          

City of University City 0.6200 6,863$                 5,393$                 4,237$           3,296$           2,354$           1,413$           769$              769$              769$              769$             

University City School District 4.6963 46,437$               36,487$               28,670$         22,299$         15,927$         9,558$           5,201$           5,201$           5,201$           5,201$          

Personal Property Tax ‐ Alternate Retailer

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Alternate Retailer Personal Property Analysis 744,009$             584,608$             459,371$       357,298$       255,224$       153,151$       83,325$         83,325$         83,325$         83,325$        

Total Personal Property Tax ‐ Alternate Retailer 71,250$               55,985$               43,992$         34,217$         24,442$         14,667$         7,980$           7,980$           7,980$           7,980$          

50% 35,625$               27,993$               21,996$         17,108$         12,221$         7,333$           3,990$           3,990$           3,990$           3,990$          

City of University City 0.6200 3,255$                 2,558$                 2,010$           1,563$           1,117$           670$              365$              365$              365$              365$             

University City School District 4.6963 22,024$               17,306$               13,598$         10,577$         7,555$           4,534$           2,467$           2,467$           2,467$           2,467$          

Personal Property Tax Impact‐Dierbergs Project

Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 TOTAL NPV @6.0%

Equalized Assessed Value of Personal Property 175,689$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$       175,689$      

Total Personal Property Tax 16,825$      16,825$         16,825$      16,825$         16,825$      16,825$         16,825$      700,677$       $535,641

50% 8,412$        8,412$        8,412$        8,412$        8,412$        8,412$       8,412$        350,338$       $267,820

City of University City 769$      769$           769$       769$           769$      769$          769$      32,010$         $24,471

University City School District 5,201$        5,201$        5,201$        5,201$        5,201$        5,201$       5,201$        216,587$       $165,572

Personal Property Tax ‐ Alternate Retailer

Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 TOTAL NPV @6.0%

Alternate Retailer Personal Property Analysis 83,325$      83,325$         83,325$      83,325$         83,325$      83,325$         83,325$     

Total Personal Property Tax ‐ Alternate Retailer 7,980$        7,980$        7,980$        7,980$        7,980$        7,980$       7,980$        332,327$       $254,052

50% 3,990$        3,990$        3,990$        3,990$        3,990$        3,990$       3,990$        166,164$       $127,026

City of University City 365$      365$           365$       365$           365$      365$          365$      15,182$         $11,606

University City School District 2,467$        2,467$        2,467$        2,467$        2,467$        2,467$       2,467$        102,726$       $78,530

Information and analyses in this report are developed using data provided by external parties. While Development Dynamics LLC believes that the information contained in this report is an accurate picture 

of the estimated value, timing and growth of the project, no claim is made as to the accuracy of the data utilized or the results of the subsequent analysis.

6

K - 2 - 8



Impact Analysis 

Table 4 – Commercial Surcharge Tax Impact 

Commercial Surcharge Impact ‐ Dierbergs Project

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Equalized Assessed Value ‐ Real Property 3,308,179$         5,513,632$         5,513,632$   5,568,768$   5,568,768$   5,624,456$   5,624,456$   5,680,701$   5,680,701$   5,737,508$  

Commercial Surcharge Tax ‐ $1.70 56,239$               93,732$               93,732$         94,669$         94,669$         95,616$         95,616$         96,572$         96,572$         97,538$        

City of University City ‐ Allocated Portion 0.000072088313 2$        4$         4$                   4$                   4$   4$                   4$                   4$    4$   4$                  

University City School District ‐ Allocated Portion 0.011940173924 395$                    658$                    658$              665$              665$              672$              672$              678$              678$              685$             

Commercial Surcharge Impact‐Alternate Retailer

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Equalized Assessed Value ‐ Real Property Standard big box retaile 2,880,000$         2,908,800$         2,937,888$   2,967,267$   2,996,940$   3,026,909$   3,057,178$   3,087,750$   3,118,627$   3,149,814$  

Commercial Surcharge Tax ‐ $1.70 48,960$               49,450$               49,944$         50,444$         50,948$         51,457$         51,972$         52,492$         53,017$         53,547$        

City of University City ‐ Allocated Portion 0.000072088313 2$        2$         2$                   2$                   2$   2$                   2$                   2$    2$   2$                  

University City School District ‐ Allocated Portion 0.011940173924 344$                    347$                    351$              354$              358$              361$              365$              369$              372$              376$             

Commercial Surcharge Impact ‐ Dierbergs Project

Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 TOTAL NPV @6.0%

Equalized Assessed Value ‐ Real Property 5,737,508$   5,794,883$   5,794,883$   5,852,831$   5,852,831$   5,911,360$   5,911,360$  

Commercial Surcharge Tax ‐ $1.70 97,538$         98,513$         98,513$         99,498$         99,498$         100,493$       100,493$       1,609,500$   $973,045

City of University City ‐ Allocated Portion 4$                   4$     4$                   4$                   4$                   4$                   4$                   68$                 $41

University City School District ‐ Allocated Portion 685$              692$              692$              699$              699$              706$              706$              11,305$         $6,834

Commercial Surcharge Impact‐Alternate Retailer

Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 TOTAL NPV @6.0%

Equalized Assessed Value ‐ Real Property 3,181,312$   3,213,125$   3,245,256$   3,277,709$   3,310,486$   3,343,591$   3,377,026$  

Commercial Surcharge Tax ‐ $1.70 54,082$         54,623$         55,169$         55,721$         56,278$         56,841$         57,409$         902,354$       $548,539

City of University City ‐ Allocated Portion 2$                   2$     2$                   2$                   2$                   2$                   2$                   38$                 $23

University City School District ‐ Allocated Portion 380$              384$              387$              391$              395$              399$              403$              6,338$           $3,853

Information and analyses in this report are developed using data provided by external parties. While Development Dynamics LLC believes that the information contained in this report is an accurate picture 

of the estimated value, timing and growth of the project, no claim is made as to the accuracy of the data utilized or the results of the subsequent analysis.

7

K - 2 - 9



1 

SECTION 3 

CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The estimates are intended to be interpreted and used based on the assumptions used for their preparation.  
Projections  formulated  in  this document are based on currently available  information and  the assumptions 
stated.    Development  Dynamics,  LLC  (“D2”)  believes  the  assumptions  used  in  this  analysis  constitute  a 
reasonable basis for its preparation. 

This Memorandum and the financial impacts estimates are based on assumptions, projections, and information 
provided by the Developer and various other sources considered reliable.  D2 neither verified nor audited the 
information that was provided by the other sources.  Information provided by others is assumed to be reliable, 
but D2 assumes no responsibility for its accuracy or certainty.  In addition to the impact on these estimates of 
actual  implementation activities, external  factors may  influence  these assumptions and projections as well. 
Changes in the national, regional, and local economic and real estate market conditions and trends may impact 
the real estate market and redevelopment activity.  Changes or modifications may also be caused by economic, 
environmental, legislative, or physical events or conditions. 

8

K - 2 - 10



FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
DIERBERGS / UNIVERSITY CITY 
Chapter 100 Program Proposal 

 
September 14, 2022 

 
 D3 Commercial Realty Group, LLC is the “real estate development” affiliate of Dierbergs 
Markets, Inc.  This proposal outlines the request by D3 Commercial Realty Group, LLC (together 
with its affiliates, “Dierbergs”) and U. City, L.L.C. (together with its affiliates, “Developer”) to 
University City, Missouri (the “City”) in connection with the proposed development of a Dierbergs 
grocery store and other commercial space (as shown on the Conceptual Site Plan attached as 
Exhibit A, the “Dierbergs Project”) on approximately 7.4+/- acres located generally at the 
southeast corner of Interstate 170 and Olive Boulevard in the City (the “Dierbergs Property”). This 
document is intended to be non-binding and is presented for discussion purposes only; the 
descriptions and depiction of the Dierbergs Project are conceptual and subject to revision in the 
sole discretion of Dierbergs. 
 
Background: Dierbergs and Developer are negotiating a Purchase and Sale Agreement 

(“PSA) setting forth the basic terms and conditions upon which Dierbergs is 
willing to purchase from Developer and Developer is willing to sell to 
Dierbergs the Dierbergs Property.  Dierbergs purchase of the Dierbergs 
Property will be contingent upon the City’s support and cooperation with 
respect to the formation and implementation of a Chapter 100 leasehold revenue 
bond program, as more specifically outlined herein (the “Chapter 100 
Program”).   

 
Project and Contingent upon the City’s approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Timing: Dierbergs Property and the City’s approval of the Chapter 100 Program, 

Dierbergs intends to acquire the Dierbergs Property from Developer in the first 
quarter of CY 2023.  Dierbergs would commit to substantially completing 
construction of the Dierbergs Project within twenty-four (24) months of closing 
on the acquisition of the Dierbergs Property. Developer and the City anticipate 
that the Dierbergs Project would generate significant incremental economic 
activity tax revenues (EATs) and community improvement district (CID) sales 
tax revenues compared to those previously projected by the Developer’s 
ongoing redevelopment at the northeast and southeast corner of I-170 and Olive 
Boulevard (the “Market at Olive Development”). In addition, Dierbergs would 
agree to pay additional CID special assessments in amounts equal to those set 
forth on Exhibit B, which assessments would constitute a lien against the 
Dierbergs Property. The Dierbergs EATs, CID sales taxes and CID assessments 
would be directed to repayment of TIF obligations issued by City. 

 
City Support: To provide support and certainty in the development of the Dierbergs Project, 

City would agree to timely consider and process Dierberg’s application for 
approval of its Preliminary Development Plan for the Dierbergs Project.  In 
addition, the City would implement the Chapter 100 Program, through which 

K - 2 - 11



the City would issue bonds, to be purchased by Dierbergs, to be used to 
purchase the Dierbergs Property and equipment owned by Dierbergs (the 
“Dierbergs Equipment”); this property and equipment would in turn be leased 
back to Dierbergs. The Chapter 100 Program is intended to provide to Dierbergs 
the following benefits: 

• Exemption from sales taxes on purchases of construction materials; 
• Exemption from real property taxes (excepting the CID assessments); 
• Exemption from personal property taxes on the Dierbergs Equipment. 

 
Dierbergs requests that the Chapter 100 Program remain in place until the end 
of 2041 which effectively equals the statutory duration of the previously 
approved TIF on the Market at Olive Development. 

 
Misc.: The timelines and due diligence schedule being negotiated by Developer and 

Dierbergs are very important aspects to the viability of the Dierbergs Project 
and its overall contribution to Developer’s comprehensive development plan 
and the repayment of the TIF obligations for the Market at Olive Development.  
Accordingly, Developer and Dierbergs are anticipating that Dierbergs will 
receive approval of its Preliminary Development Plan and the Chapter 100 
Program by the City by November 15, 2022. Dierbergs would reimburse the 
City for reasonable third-party costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees of 
Gilmore Bell P.C. 

K - 2 - 12



Exhibit A 
Conceptual Site Plan 

 

K - 2 - 13



Exhibit B 
CID Special Assessment Schedule 

Dierbergs Project at the Market at Olive 
 

Assumption:   
Bi-annual increase in fixed CID Special Assessment = 2.50% 
 

 Year Fixed Chapter 100 CID Special Assessment 
1 2024 $100,000 
2 2025 $102,500 
3 2026 $102,500 
4 2027 $105,063 
5 2028 $105,063 
6 2029 $107,689 
7 2030 $107,689 
8 2031 $110,381 
9 2032 $110,381 
10 2033 $113,141 
11 2034 $113,141 
12 2035 $115,969 
13 2036 $115,969 
14 2037 $118,869 
15 2038 $118,869 
16 2039 $121,840 
17 2040 $121,840 
18 2041 $124,886 

 

K - 2 - 14



K - 2 - 15



K - 2 - 16



K - 2 - 17



K - 2 - 18



K - 2 - 19



K - 2 - 20



K - 2 - 21



K - 2 - 22



K - 2 - 23



K - 2 - 24



K - 2 - 25



K - 2 - 26



K - 2 - 27



K - 2 - 28



MARKET AT OLIVE

DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST
1

K - 2 - 29



Market at Olive Update
• Costco opens tomorrow 10.25.2022

• Stockpile of dirt is now gone

• Last resident north of Olive is moving out this week

• South of Olive site work done in next 3-4 months

• North side of Olive demolition and grading to begin this year

• Dierbergs Markets is proposed South Anchor tenant

2MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 30



Success for Project Means
• Competing for deals

• That means trade-offs

• That means setting priorities

• Public-private partnership = In this together

• What is a win? Paying off the TIF EARLY

3MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 31



4MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 32



Why Dierbergs
• Dierbergs Markets is a locally owned, private, family business with significant investments in and around the Metro 
area.

• Second only to Costco, Dierbergs generates high Taxable Sales which would likely be double alternate J Anchor.

• Dierbergs would attract other high-end users to locate within Market at Olive.

• Dierbergs’ personal property investment is double typical retail and at 50% generates new taxes for the City not 
captured by the TIF.

• More sales taxes means TIF is retired sooner so City benefits directly from the development sooner.

• Dierbergs is the highest and best use for the south anchor area.

• Dierbergs will buy and own the store = Long-term commitment to University City

5MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 33



Proposed Dierbergs Site Plan

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 6

K - 2 - 34



Why the Request for Chapter 100
• Dierbergs needs to reduce costs that impact its bottom line, examples are:

◦ Real estate taxes

◦ Personal property taxes

◦ Sales taxes on things Dierbergs buys, such as construction materials

• Sales tax on things Dierbergs sells are paid by customers, not Dierbergs

• The Chapter 100 reduces Dierbergs bottom line costs

7MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 35



Why Agree to Chapter 100
• Taxing jurisdictions have already lost all new real estate taxes because the TIF

• Loss of commercial surcharge is small and outweighed by the benefits

• City already agreed to Chapter 353 in 2019 that eliminates surcharge

• Dierbergs will buy 2x or more the personal property of a typical retail

• 50% of Dierbergs’ personal property taxes is greater than 100% of an alternative

• University City does not collect sales tax on construction materials, so gives up nothing

8MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 36



Potential Cost of Chapter 100

Negatives: per yr Savings Total Savings Total Paid Alternate

Projected PP tax savings $23,125 $370,000 $370,000 +/- $370,000

Commercial Surcharge $32,952 $527,225 $0 +/- $375,000

Construction Sales Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Cost to City - School U City Schools All Districts

Potential Revenue Lost $71,778 $520,390 $897,225

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 9

K - 2 - 37



Benefits of Dierbergs

Positives: Dierbergs Best Alt #1 Likely Alt #2 Ave Difference

Per Yr. TIF REV. Fund Pmts $1,364,071 $989,498 $725,086 $506,779

Total 16 years $21,825,136 $15,831,971 $11,601,377 $8,108,462

Annual TIF Note Debt Svc $4,595,534

Possible shortening of TIF in years 1.76

Impact 1 yr shorter TIF = New RE taxes collected by City and others 1st year TIF ends $1,441,165

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 10

K - 2 - 38



Comparison of Cost Benefit

IMPACT BY TAX DISTRICT U City Schools All Districts

Revenue from early TIF $203,426 $1,474,838 $2,542,823

CH 100 Potential Loss ($71,778) ($520,390) ($897,225)

Net Benefit / (Cost) $131,648 $954,448 $1,645,598

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 11

K - 2 - 39



Summary of Dierbergs Ch 100 Impact
• Terrific intangible benefits to the City

• Many intangible benefits to the Development

• Similar impact as the originally contemplated Chapter 353

• Even at 50%, PP tax savings still generating PP tax equal to an alternate

• Even if PP tax and surcharge is a cost, it is outweighed by new revenue

• All things considered, Dierbergs with Ch 100 = Huge benefit

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 12

K - 2 - 40



Review of Request
• Securing large anchors is challenging and requires give and take

• Focus should be on best in class, most impactful retailers

• Trade-offs or give and take should be a net benefit

• Dierbergs = The greatest chance to pay the TIF EARLY

• Early TIF payoff = win for the City, win for the schools, win for the developer

Conclusion = Full speed ahead on Chapter 100 for Dierbergs ASAP

13MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST

K - 2 - 41



Next Steps

MARKET AT OLIVE - DIERBERGS CHAPTER 100 REQUEST 14

K - 2 - 42



K - 3 - 1



September 28, 2022 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Application for Conditional Use Permit CUP 22-09 – The proposed use is to 
allow a reduction of up to 20% in the number of required off-street parking 
spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 9 of 
the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District. 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on September 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via 
videoconference, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by 
170 and Olive Holdco, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a reduction of up to 
20% in the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 
400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” 
Planned Commercial District. 

By a vote of 4 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the 
application to reduce the number of parking spaces from 93 to 83, a decrease of 
10.75%. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

K - 3 - 2



 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
City Council 

 
MEETING DATE:   October 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   CUP 22-09 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
 
Location: 8630 Olive Boulevard 
 
Property Owner: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) to allow a reduction of 

up to 20% in the number of required off-street parking 
spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, for Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in 
the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District.  

 
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial    
Existing Land Use:   Vacant 
Proposed Zoning:   No Change 
Proposed Land Use:  Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North: GC – General Commercial District / PA – Public Activity Dist. 
East GC – General Commercial District / PA – Public Activity Dist. 
South: SR – Single-family Residential District 
West: IC – Industrial Commercial District 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[X] Approval       [ ] Approval with Conditions   [ ] Denial 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
Attachments: 

K - 3 - 3



A. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
B. C.U.P. Applicant Memo and Site Plan 

 
Applicant’s Request – Parking Reduction  
As noted in the Applicant Memo, a mix of uses is proposed for Lot 9 (Building O) of Phase 
Two of the Market at Olive development: 3,800 square-feet of restaurant uses and 8,400 
square-feet of office/commercial uses, consisting of four (4) tenants. If these uses were 
parked according to §400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, 93 spaces would be required. 
The Applicant is requesting a decrease of 10 spaces, or a 10.75% decrease.  

It should be noted that the Applicant is also requesting/providing an increase in the 
number of stacking spaces required in lieu of the parking spaces. The Applicant’s 
rationale is outlined in the memo. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use to allow   would have minimal impact on the 
surrounding properties and streets adjacent to the Development and provide for a better 
development. 
Staff is recommending approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit to decrease 
the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2 from 93 to 83, a decrease of 
10.75%. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on September 28, 2022, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow a reduction of up to 20% in 
the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned 
Commercial District, as presented. 

 

K - 3 - 4



K - 3 - 5



K - 3 - 6



K - 3 - 7



K - 3 - 8



K - 4 - 1



September 28, 2022 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Application for Conditional Use Permit CUP 22-10 – The proposed use is to 
allow a reduction of up to 20% in the number of required off-street parking 
spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 10 of 
the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District. 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on September 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via 
videoconference, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by 
170 and Olive Holdco, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a reduction of up to 
20% in the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 
400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-
C” Planned Commercial District. 

By a vote of 4 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the 
application to reduce the number of parking spaces from 47 to 41, a decrease of 
12.77%. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

K - 4 - 2



 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
City Council 

 
MEETING DATE:   October 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   CUP 22-10 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
 
Location: 8630 Olive Boulevard 
 
Property Owner: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) to allow a reduction of 

up to 20% in the number of required off-street parking 
spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, for Lot 10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in 
the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District.  

 
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial    
Existing Land Use:   Vacant 
Proposed Zoning:   No Change 
Proposed Land Use:  Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North: GC – General Commercial District / PA – Public Activity Dist. 
East GC – General Commercial District / PA – Public Activity Dist. 
South: SR – Single-family Residential District 
West: IC – Industrial Commercial District 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[X] Approval       [ ] Approval with Conditions   [ ] Denial 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
Attachments: 

K - 4 - 3



A. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
B. C.U.P. Applicant Memo and Site Plan 

 
Applicant’s Request – Parking Reduction  
As noted in the Applicant Memo, the proposed use for Lot 10 (Building G) of Phase Two 
of the Market at Olive development is a restaurant. If this lot were parked according to 
§400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, 47 spaces would be required. The Applicant is 
requesting a decrease of 6 spaces, or a 12.77% decrease.  

It should be noted that the Applicant is also requesting/providing double stacking – two 
lanes of more than 8 cars in lieu of the parking spaces. The Applicant’s rationale is 
outlined in the memo. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use to allow   would have minimal impact on the 
surrounding properties and streets adjacent to the Development and provide for a better 
development. 
Staff is recommending approval of the request for a Conditional Use Permit to decrease 
the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2 from 47 to 41, a decrease of 
12.77%. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on September 28, 2022, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow a reduction of up to 20% in 
the number of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned 
Commercial District, as presented. 

 

K - 4 - 4



K - 4 - 5



K - 4 - 6



K - 4 - 7



K - 4 - 8



K - 5 - 1



September 21, 2022

stormwater

RE: Request for Intent to Participate in Municipal Reimbursement Program from Operations, 
Maintenance, and Construction Improvement (OMCI) Taxing Subdistricts

Dear Public Officials:

In 2023, the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District (MSD) is again offering a grant program in certain 
OMCI subdistricts for local agencies to use up to a 50% share of OMCI subdistrict revenue from their 
municipality for their own stormwater purposes.

Included with this letter is a Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate form for each OMCI 
subdistrict in which your municipality is located. As in years past, this form identifies the OMCI 
subdistrict and the 2023 revenue allocation for which the municipality is eligible. It also indicates the 
municipality’s unallocated balance from previous years (if applicable), and the total allocation available.

At this time, you only need to identify your municipality’s interest in participating in the grant 
reimbursement program for 2023. There is not yet a need to identify the specific uses for the funding. 
Please review and return the form by October 21, 2022. Failure to respond by November 4, 2022, 
will forfeit the municipality’s allocation of 2023 funding.

If the municipality intends to apply for a reimbursement project in 2023, please indicate that on the 
included form. Further guidance on the grant application process will be provided in a subsequent 
transmittal before the end of this calendar year. Multiple applications can be submitted to utilize the 
allocation; however, the stormwater use must be within the OMCI boundary from which the 
reimbursement is requested. Additionally, the annual fund allocations must be utilized by the 
municipality within five years or the unutilized portion, more than five years old, will be forfeited from the 
remaining balance.

MSD will use the balance of the OMCI funds, not allocated for grants, for the design and construction of 
MSD identified stormwater capital projects within the OMCI.

If you have further questions, they can be addressed to Jeff Riepe, Engineering Program Planning 
Stormwater Team Lead, at 314-768-6271, JRIEPE@stlmsd.com. MSD thanks you for your support of 
our programs. We look forward to working with you to address stormwater issues within our community.

Sincerely,

Richard L. Unverferth, PE 
Director of Engineering

Attachments: Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate

METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT | 2350 MARKET STREET | ST. LOUIS. MO 63103-2555 
(314)768-6260 | WWW.PROJECTCLEARSTL.COM

K - 5 - 2

mailto:JRIEPE@stlmsd.com
http://WWW.PROJECTCLEARSTL.COM


 

 

                                                                                                                                                              

Municipality: City of University City 

Fiscal Year 2023 Allocation: $195,759 
Unencumbered Allocation from previous years $359,952 
Total Allocation Available: $555,711 
 
In 2023 the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District plans to allocate University City Branch of RDP taxing subdistrict 
revenue to municipalities to reimburse them for costs incurred for eligible stormwater projects.  Eligible stormwater 
expenditures may include the following: storm sewer and inlet construction; drainage improvements; streambank 
stabilization and erosion control projects; clearing under bridges or clearing detention basins; stormwater planning or 
engineering costs; and other stormwater related expenses as determined appropriate by the District.  Activities for MS4 
permit compliance and routine maintenance are not considered eligible.  Your municipality’s allocation is indicated 
above, and options are listed below. 

Last year the City of University City chose option (A) from the selections below. 

Please indicate your choice for 2023, and sign and return this form no later than October 21, 2022. 

Failure to respond by November 4, 2022, will forfeit your municipality’s allocation for this fiscal year. 
 
Official Contact for Reimbursement Program: Name:  ______________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________ 

E-mail:  ______________________________________ 

Phone:  ______________________________________ 

Choose One: 

 (A) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year and plans to submit an 
application for stormwater reimbursement project in 2023.  Further guidance on the grant application process 
will be provided in a subsequent transmittal before January 1, 2023. 
 

 (B) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year; however, does not 
anticipate applying for funding before Dec. 31, 2023.  We understand that, if the program continues, allocations 
can only be reserved up to five years before being forfeited.   

 
 (C) City of University City will not participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year.  Our allocation is 

forfeited and will be used by MSD for other stormwater purposes. 
 

Signature: _____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ Date: ____________________________________ 
 

Return completed form to:    Jeff Riepe, MSD, 2350 Market Street, St. Louis, MO 63103 or jriepe@stlmsd.com

 

University City Branch of RDP OMCI Reimbursements Program 
2023 Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate 

K - 5 - 3

mailto:jriepe@stlmsd.com


 

 

                                                                                                                                                              

Municipality: City of University City 

Fiscal Year 2023 Allocation: $33,534 
Unencumbered Allocation from previous years $66,532 
Total Allocation Available: $100,066 
 
In 2023 the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District plans to allocate Deer Creek taxing subdistrict revenue to 
municipalities to reimburse them for costs incurred for eligible stormwater projects.  Eligible stormwater expenditures 
may include the following: storm sewer and inlet construction; drainage improvements; streambank stabilization and 
erosion control projects; clearing under bridges or clearing detention basins; stormwater planning or engineering costs; 
and other stormwater related expenses as determined appropriate by the District.  Activities for MS4 permit compliance 
and routine maintenance are not considered eligible.  Your municipality’s allocation is indicated above, and options are 
listed below. 

Last year the City of University City chose option (A) from the selections below. 

Please indicate your choice for 2023, and sign and return this form no later than October 21, 2022. 

Failure to respond by November 4, 2022, will forfeit your municipality’s allocation for this fiscal year. 
 
Official Contact for Reimbursement Program: Name:  ______________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________ 

E-mail:  ______________________________________ 

Phone:  ______________________________________ 

Choose One: 

 (A) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year and plans to submit an 
application for stormwater reimbursement project in 2023.  Further guidance on the grant application process 
will be provided in a subsequent transmittal before January 1, 2023. 
 

 (B) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year; however, does not 
anticipate applying for funding before Dec. 31, 2023.  We understand that, if the program continues, allocations 
can only be reserved up to five years before being forfeited.   

 
 (C) City of University City will not participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year.  Our allocation is 

forfeited and will be used by MSD for other stormwater purposes. 
 

Signature: _____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ Date: ____________________________________ 
 

Return completed form to:    Jeff Riepe, MSD, 2350 Market Street, St. Louis, MO 63103 or jriepe@stlmsd.com

 

Deer Creek OMCI Reimbursements Program 
2023 Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate 

K - 5 - 4

mailto:jriepe@stlmsd.com


L - 1 - 1



 
INTRODUCED BY:________________    DATE: October 10, 2022 
 
BILL  9487        ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC 
WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, there is a public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive in University View, 
a subdivision within the City of University City, in St. Louis County, Missouri, recorded in Plat Book 
19, Page 45 of the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds in Clayton, Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing on the vacation of said public walkway to be held by 
the City Council of City of University City Council October 10, 2022 at 6:30 p.m., was duly published 
in the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City, on September 25, 2022; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 

comments concerning said vacation were duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The public walkway between 511 and 519 Westview Drive in University View, a 
subdivision within the City of University City in St. Louis County, Missouri, recorded in Plat Book 19, 
Page 45 of the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds, and all of said City's rights, title and interest therein 
is hereby vacated, surrendered and quitclaimed, but reserving all public utility easements, if any. 

 
Section 2. Said public walkway is further described and shown hachured on the attached Walk Vacation 

Plat, marked “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by this reference thereto. 

Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to have this ordinance recorded in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds of St. Louis County, Missouri. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by 
law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 

L - 1 - 2



 
“EXHIBIT A” 

 

L - 1 - 3



L - 1 - 4



L - 2 - 1



  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
September 28, 2022 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Final Development Plan Approval – Market at Olive – Phase II Development 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on September 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via video 
conference, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by 170 
and Olive Holdco, LLC to approve the Final Development Plan for their proposed 
Market at Olive Development, Phase II 
 
By a vote of 4 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said 
resolution. 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 
 
 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

L - 2 - 2



 
INTRODUCED BY:  Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson  DATE: October 10, 2022 
 
 
BILL NO.  Bill 9488       ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
PHASE II  OF THE PROPOSED MARKET AT OLIVE  DEVELOPMENT 

LOCATED AT 8630 OLIVE BOULEVARD. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan was approved by the City Council of 
University City on May 9, 2022 by Resolution No. 2022-4, for the development project known 
as “Market at Olive, Phase II” in a Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C) District in the 
City of University City, and the City Council authorized the submittal of a Final Development 
Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Final Development Plan dated November 19, 2021, has been submitted 
for review and approval; and  

 
WHEREAS, the review and approval of a Final Development Plan shall be in 

accordance with Section 400.870 “Final Development Plan Procedure” and Section 405.380 
“Final Plat Submittal Requirements” of the University City Municipal Code with the adoption of 
an ordinance by City Council; and  

 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on September 28, 2022, the University City Plan 

Commission considered and recommended to the City Council of University City approval of the 
Final Development Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the final plat was approved by Ordinance No. 7177 on April 25, 2022 and 

by Ordinance No. 7200 on September 27, 2022. 
 
WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan, including all required documents and 

information submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Attached, marked “Exhibit A” and made a part hereof is a Final Development 
Plan submitted for the “Market at Olive, Phase II” development.  
  

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that the Final Development Plan is in full 
compliance with said Section 400.870 of the University City Municipal Code. 

 
Section 3. The Final Development Plan shall include the following additional conditions: 
 

1. The buildings and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in compliance 
with the plans submitted and attached. The footprint and general layout are subject to the 

L - 2 - 3



plans dated November 19, 2021.  The height and mass shall be restricted to that shown on 
the Final Development Plan. 

 
2. Off-street parking and loading requirements shall be provided as required by Chapter 

400, Article VII of the University City Zoning Code as may be approved by Conditional 
Use Permits for Lot 9 and Lot 10.  

 
3. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 

Director of Planning & Development for approval. Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker parking during all phases of the proposed construction. It shall 
further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues such as street cleaning and 
traffic diversion. Said plan shall be finalized prior to the issuance of a building permit. It 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain those approvals in written form in a timely 
manner prior to issuance of the building permit. 

 
4. The Landscape Plan shall be approved by the Director of Planning and Development. 

 
Section 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the Final Development Plan 

the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of University City. 
 

Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

 
Exhibit A 

 

L - 2 - 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

L - 2 - 5



 
 
 

Exhibit A 

L - 2 - 6



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

L - 2 - 7



 

L - 2 - 8



M - 1 - 1 



Page 1 of 1 

INTRODUCED BY: DATE:    

BILL NO:   9489  ORDINANCE NO.___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VII OF THE TRAFFIC 
CODE, TO REVISE TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Schedule VII of the Traffic Code, of the University City Municipal Code is amended 
as provided herein. Language to be added to the Code is represented as highlighted. This 
Ordinance contemplates no revisions to the Code other than those so designated; any 
language or provisions from the Code omitted from this Ordinance remains in full force and 
effect.  

Section 2. Schedule VII Stop Intersections, Table VII-A Stop Intersections” of the Traffic Code 
is hereby amended to add the following line item: 

Stop Street Cross Street  Stops 
Melrose Mt. Vernon  (Blank) 

Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of the sections revised by this 
amendment nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 

Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be punished in accordance with the provisions of the University City Municipal Code. 

Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ________day of____________2022 

___________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 

M - 1 - 2 



M - 2 - 1



  

 
 
September 28, 2022 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
RE: Zoning Map Amendment – Lot A and Common Ground, Market at Olive North (IV) 

Dear Ms. Reese, 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on September 28, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via 
videoconference, the Plan Commission considered the application of U. City, LLC for a 
Zoning Map Amendment for Lot A and Common Ground, Market at Olive North, Plat 4, 
and to further consider approval of a Preliminary Development Plan.  
By a vote of 4 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the Zoning Map 
Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan with the following conditions: 

1. The use associated with this development shall be for a restaurant, including drive-
through facilities. 

2. Off-street parking and loading requirements shall be provided as required by a 
Conditional Use Permit for the site lowering the number of parking spaces from 59 
to 54. 

3. The buildings and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in 
compliance with the plans submitted and attached. The footprint and general layout 
are subject to the plans dated September 6, 2022 and the Landscape Plan dated 
September 2, 2022. The height and mass shall be restricted to that shown on the 
Final Development Plan and in the Building Elevations included with this report. 

4. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 
Director of Planning & Development for approval. Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker and resident parking during all phases of the proposed 
construction. It shall further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues 
such as street cleaning and traffic diversion. Said plan shall be finalized prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. It shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain those 
approvals in written form in a timely manner prior to issuance of the building permit. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

M - 2 - 2



  

 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
City Council 

 
MEETING DATE:   October 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   REZ 22-07 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
 
Location: Lot A and Common Ground, Market at Olive North (IV) 
 
Request: A Zoning Map Amendment from Planned 

Development Commercial District (PD-C), General 
Commercial District (GC) and Single-family 
Residential District (SR), to Planned Development 
Commercial District (PD-C) and to further consider 
approval of a Preliminary Site Development Plan and 
Final Site Development Plan for the proposed 
commercial development. 

 
Existing Zoning: Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C), 

General Commercial District (GC) and Single-family 
Residential District (SR)  

Proposed Zoning:   Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C) 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant, empty commercial building and houses 
Proposed Land Use: Restaurant 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
North:     IC – Industrial Commercial   
East: SR – Single-family Residential / GC – General 

Commercial District 
South:     PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 
West:      PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[ x ] Yes [  ] No  [  ] No reference 
 
PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [x ] Approval with Conditions in Resolution [  ] Denial 
 
 

M - 2 - 3



ATTACHMENTS 
A. Map Amendment Application  
B. Preliminary and Final Site Development Plan 
C. Landscape Plan – Olive Frontage 
D. Landscape Plan – Restaurant Site 
E. Site Lighting Cut Sheets 
F. Site Photometric Plan 
G. Building Elevations 

 
 
Applicant’s Request 
The Applicant is requesting that the site be rezoned from Planned Development 
Commercial District (PD-C), General Commercial District (GC) and Single-family 
Residential District (SR), to Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C) and to 
further consider approval of a Preliminary Site Development Plan and Final Site 
Development Plan for the proposed commercial development. 
 
The rezoning covers only one of the “out lots” of the Market at Olive Phase IV 
development, specifically for a Chick-Fil-A restaurant.  
 
Existing Property 
The existing property where the restaurant is proposed is along Olive Boulevard where 
the western part of Jeffrey Plaza was located. There will be only two out lots in Phase IV 
of the Market at Olive development: one at the corner of Woodson Road and Olive 
Boulevard, and this parcel immediately to the west. A larger anchor parcel is proposed 
to the north of these out lots.  
 
The development of this restaurant is part of the larger “Market at Olive” redevelopment 
project that is currently underway and is consistent with the overall site concept plan.  
 
Analysis 
Vehicular Access 
There is one (1) proposed entry point into the development off the inner drive aisle. Two 
exit points are listed: the same entry way as well as an exit from the drive through lanes. 
As is the case on most new Chick-Fil-A locations, a double drive-through lane is 
proposed. 
 
Comprehensive Plan 
It is staff’s opinion that the proposed development is consistent with the goals and 
objectives of the University City Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005. Applicable 
sections from the Plan Update that support this opinion include: 

Chapter 3, of the Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005, under Land Use and 
Redevelopment, as a general policy, states, “The City will strongly support 
development(s) that promote desirable planning concepts such as neighborhood-
serving, mixed uses and transit-oriented development and enhance the pedestrian 

M - 2 - 4



character of the City.” The Comprehensive Plan also indicates that the City “will 
encourage the design of commercial and retail structures along major corridors for 
multiple tenants and mixed uses.” 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on September 28, 2022, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously (4 – 0) to approve the map Amendment for Lot A and Common Ground, 
Market at Olive North, Plat IV from Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C), 
General Commercial District (GC) and Single-family Residential District (SR), to 
Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C). The Commission also voted 
unanimously to approve a Preliminary Site Development Plan for the site. 

There were primarily two issues with the Applicant’s proposal:  
1. The site was one parking stall shy of the required number of spaces required by 

the Zoning Ordinance. The plan showed 58 spaces where 59 are required. The 
Applicant opted to not ask for approval of the Final Development Plan at this 
meeting in lieu of requesting a Conditional Use Permit to lower the number of 
parking spaces required. That request is on the October 26 Plan Commission 
agenda. This has been noted in the recommendations below.  

 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
Based on this report’s analysis Staff recommends approval of the Applicant’s proposed 
Map Amendment and Preliminary Site Development Plan with the following conditions: 
 

1. The use associated with this development shall be for a restaurant, including 
drive-through facilities; and  

2. Off-street parking and loading requirements shall be provided as required by a 
Conditional Use Permit for the site lowering the number of parking spaces from 
59 to 54. 

3. The buildings and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in 
compliance with the plans submitted and attached. The footprint and general 
layout are subject to the plans dated September 6, 2022 and the Landscape Plan 
dated September 2, 2022. The height and mass shall be restricted to that shown 
on the Final Development Plan and in the Building Elevations included with this 
report. 

4. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 
Director of Planning & Development for approval. Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker and resident parking during all phases of the proposed 
construction. It shall further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues 
such as street cleaning and traffic diversion. Said plan shall be finalized prior to 
the issuance of a building permit. It shall be the applicant’s responsibility to 
obtain those approvals in written form in a timely manner prior to issuance of the 
building permit. 

 

M - 2 - 5



M - 2 - 6



INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
BILL NO. 9490          ORDINANCE NO.__________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF 
THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE 
CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY KNOWN AS LOT A AND COMMON GROUND 2 
OF PLAT 4 OF THE MARKET AT OLIVE DEVELOPMENT, FROM “PD” PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, “GC” GENERAL COMMERCIAL AND 
“SR” SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “PD” PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (“PD-C”). 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code divides the City into 
several zoning districts, and regulates the character of buildings which may be erected in each of 
said districts, and the uses to which the buildings and premises located therein may be put; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission examined an amendment of the Official Zoning 
Map of the City which changes the classification of property known as Lot A and Common 
Ground 2 associated with the Market at Olive Development, Plat 4, from Planned Development 
Commercial District (PD-C), General Commercial District (GC) and Single-family Residential 
District (SR), to Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission, in a meeting held via video conference on 
September 28, 2022, considered said amendment and recommended to the City Council that it be 
enacted into an ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City 
Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m., on November 14, 2022, was duly published in the 
St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City on October 30, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, 
and all suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the 
City were duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the Official 
Zoning Map, is hereby amended by amending the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning 
districts established pursuant to Section 400.070, for property known as Lot A and Common 
Ground 2 of the Market at Olive Development, Plat 4, so as to change the classification of said 
property from Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C), General Commercial District 
(GC) and Single-family Residential District (SR), to Planned Development Commercial District 
(PD-C). The following land uses and developments may be permitted in said PD-C District, 
subject to approval of a final development plan: restaurant, including drive-through facilities. 

 

M - 2 - 7



Section 2. Said property described as Lot A and Common Ground 2 of the Market at 
Olive Development, Plat 4, totaling 2.276 acres, is more fully described with a legal description, 
attached hereto, marked Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof. 
 

Section 3. By Resolution No. ________, the City Council approved a preliminary 
development plan known as “Lot A and Common Ground 2 of Market at Olive Development, 
Plat 4,” and authorized the preparation of a final development plan.  A final development plan 
and plat must be approved by the City Council prior to the issuance of any building permits in 
connection with the development.  A landscape plan shall be submitted for review and approval 
with the Final Development Plan. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 

corporation from any penalty incurred by the violation of Section 400.070, nor bar the 
prosecution of any such violation. 
 

Section 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 
400.2570 of the University City Municipal Code. 
 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M - 2 - 8



EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING – LOT A AND COMMON 
GROUND 2, MARKET AT OLIVE, PLAT 4 

 
LOT A Description 
A tract of land being part of Lots 5-7 of Block 1 of St. Patrick Courts, as recorded in Plat Book 
48 Page 33, part of Lot 2 of Market and Olive as recorded in Plat Book 369 Page 124 and part of 
Lots 2 and 3 of the Subdivision of CHARLES H. GIERS ESTATE, Section 4 & 5, Township 45 
North, Range 6 East, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 on page 3 in 
Township 45, North, Range 6 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, University City, St Louis 
County, Missouri being more particularly described as follows:   
Commencing at the southwest corner of above Lot 2 of Market and Olive, said point also being 
located on the north right-of-way line of Olive Boulevard, variable width; thence along said 
right-of-way line South 87 degrees 54 minutes 10 seconds East, 33.00 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING of the herein described tract; thence departing said right-of-way line the following 
courses and distances: North 00 degrees 27 minutes 36 seconds East, 157.03 feet; North 03 
degrees 31 minutes 53 seconds East, 58.36 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a 
radius of 42.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 63.39 feet and a chord which bears 
North 46 degrees 46 minutes 11 seconds East, 57.54 feet; South 89 degrees 59 minutes 31 
seconds East, 201.39 feet and South 00 degrees 27 minutes 35 seconds West, 250.41 feet to that 
part of above said Lot 2 and 3 of CHARLES H. GIERS ESTATE to be dedicated to Missouri 
Department of Transportation; then along said proposed right-of-way,  South 89 degrees 49 
minutes 17 seconds West, 2.50 feet and South 88 degrees 59 minutes 09 seconds West, 236.26 
feet to the existing north right-of-way line of above said Olive Boulevard; thence along said 
right-of-way line, South 88 degrees 49 minutes 30 seconds West, 6.00 feet and North 87 degrees 
54 minutes 10 seconds West, 1.45 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 61,581 square feet or 1.414 acres, more or less. 

 
Common Ground 2 Description 
A tract of land being part of Lots 1-7 of Block 1 and part of Vacated Elmore Court both of St. 
Patrick Courts, as recorded in Plat Book 48 Page 33,and part of Lot 2 of Market and Olive as 
recorded in Plat Book 369 Page 124 in Township 45, North, Range 6 East of the Fifth Principal 
Meridian, University City, St Louis County, Missouri being more particularly described as 
follows:   
Beginning the southwest corner of above Lot 2 of Market and Olive, said point also being 
located on the north right-of-way line of Olive Boulevard, variable width; thence along the 
common line between Lots 1 and 2 of said Market and Olive, the following courses and 
distances: North 00 degrees 26 minutes 14 seconds East, 280.64 feet; North 14 degrees 59 
minutes 08 seconds East, 248.43 feet and North 00 degrees 27 minutes 35 seconds East, 56.19 
feet; thence departing said common line, the following courses and distances: South 89 degrees 
32 minutes 25 seconds East, 2.17 feet; South 07 degrees 52 minutes 59 seconds East, 70.14 feet; 
South 00 degrees 01 minute 30 seconds West, 44.57 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve 
to the right having a radius of 562.00 feet; thence along said curve with an arc length of  88.44 
feet and a chord which bears South 04 degrees 05 minutes 47 seconds West, 88.35 feet; South 00 
degrees 19 minutes 19 seconds West, 69.94 feet; to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the 
left having a radius of 19.00 feet; along said curve with an  arc length of 10.15 feet and a chord 

M - 2 - 9



which bears South 74 degrees 13 minutes 49 seconds East, 10.03 feet and South 89 degrees 31 
minutes 35 seconds East, 441.26 feet to the west line of that part of vacated Elmore Court, 50 
feet wide and Lot 1 of Block 1 of above said  St. Patrick Courts as dedicated to St. Louis County, 
Missouri; thence along said west line, South 01 degree 59 minutes 58 seconds East, 6.04 feet and 
South 00 degrees 18 minutes 31 seconds East, 33.63 feet; thence departing said west line the 
following courses and distances: North 89 degrees 23 minutes 43 seconds West, 7.00 feet; North 
47 degrees 43 minutes 16 seconds West, 14.07 feet; North 00 degrees 24 minutes 53 seconds 
East, 7.00 feet; North 89 degrees 37 minutes 36 seconds West, 198.24 feet; South 00 degrees 31 
minutes 21 seconds West,  23.02 feet; North 89 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds West, 227.63 
feet; to the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 42.00 feet and a chord which bears 
South 46 degrees 46 minutes 11 seconds West, 57.54 feet; South 03 degrees 31 minutes 53 
seconds West, 58.36 feet and South 00 degrees 27 minutes 36 seconds West, 157.03 feet to the 
north right-of-way line of above said Olive Boulevard; thence along said right-of-way line, North 
87 degrees 54 minutes 10 seconds West, 33.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 37,568 square feet or 0.862 acres, more or less. 
 
 

M - 2 - 10



TITLE SHEET

C1.0

GENERAL NOTES:

1) Basis of Bearings Missouri State Plane Grid North

C1.0 TITLE SHEET
C2.0 EXISTING & PROPOSED PROPERTY LINES
C3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS/DEMOLITION PLAN
C4.0 SITE PLAN
C5.0 SITE & GRADING PLAN
C6.0 SITE UTILITY PLAN

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

52
64

\6
19

3-
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

FA
 C

1.
0 

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T 

(2
)  

PL
O

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 4
:2

1p
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

M - 2 - 11



ELM
O

R
E (50'w

) C
T.

R
IC

H
AR

D
 (50'w

) C
T.

O
R

C
H

AR
D

 (50'w
) C

T.

ALFR
ED

 (40'w
) AVE.

WOODSON RD.

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

LOT B

LOT A

COMMON
GROUND

LOT C

COMMON
GROUND

LOT B NOT
INCLUDED IN
THIS SUBMITTAL

LOT C AND COMMON
GROUND 1 NOT
INCLUDED IN THIS
SUBMITTAL

ELM
O

R
E (50'w

) C
T.

R
IC

H
AR

D
 (50'w

) C
T.

O
R

C
H

AR
D

 (50'w
) C

T.

ALFR
ED

 (40'w
) AVE.

12

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

19 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

34 27

28

29

30

31

32

33

35

36

37

38

39

43

40

41

42

43

COSTCO
(LOT 1 MARKET AT OLIVE
SUBDIVSION PLAT)

WOODSON RD.

O
LI

VE
 B

LV
D

.

EXISTING &
PROPOSED

PROPERTY LINES

C2.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

52
64

\6
19

3-
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

FA
 C

2.
0 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
VA

C
AT

IO
N

S 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
8,

  2
02

2 
- 4

:2
1p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

ORIGINAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS

Lots 1-7 and 12-18 in Block 1 and Lots 1-7 and 12-18 in Block 2 and Lots 1-5 and 11-13 in Block 3, and  Vacated Orchard Court,
Richard Court, Elmore Court all of St. Patrick Courts, as recorded in Plat Book 48 Page 33,

Part of vacated Alfred Avenue

Lot 2 of Market and Olive as recorded in Plat Book 369 Page 124

and

A tract of land being part of Lots 1, 2 and 3 of the Subdivision of CHARLES H. GIERS ESTATE, Section 4 & 5, Township 45
North, Range 6 East, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 on page 3, of the St. Louis County records, St. Louis
County, Missouri, said tract further described as follows:

Beginning at a iron pipe in the West line of Woodson Road, (60 feet wide), at the Southeast corner of Lot 1 in Block 1 of St.
Patrick Courts a subdivision being a re-subdivision of part of Lots 1, 2 & 3 of Charles H. Giers  Estate, said subdivision is
recorded in Plat Book 48 page 33, of the St. Louis County Records; thence South 00 degrees 49 minutes 00 seconds West,
along the West line of Woodson Road, 169.77 feet to an iron spike; thence South 13 degrees 08 minutes 36 seconds West,
12.29 feet to an iron right of way marker in the North line of Olive Street Road; thence along the North line of Olive Street Road
the following courses and distances, North 89 degrees 14 minutes 00 seconds West, 333.78 feet to an iron pipe; thence South
00 degrees 46 feet 00 seconds West, 5.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 89 degrees 14 minutes 00 seconds West 189.52
feet to an iron pipe; thence leaving the North line of said Olive Street Road; North 00 degrees 47 minutes 30 seconds East,
187.00 feet to an iron pipe at the Southwest corner of Lot 8 of St. Patrick Courts; thence along the South line of said St. Patrick
Courts Subdivision South 89 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds East, 526.00 feet to the iron pipe at the point of beginning.
Excepting out any part of Lot 2 of Market and Olive as recorded in Plat Book 369 Page 124

M - 2 - 12



33
7.

6

376'

108'

120'

190'

236.2'

249.4'

49'

ELM
O

R
E (50'w

) C
T.

R
IC

H
AR

D
 (50'w

) C
T.

O
R

C
H

AR
D

 (50'w
) C

T.

ALFR
ED

 (40'w
) AVE.

WOODSON RD.

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

EXISTING
CONDITIONS/

DEMOLITION PLAN

C3.0

BUILDING DEMOLITION

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
FA

 C
3.

0 
EX

 C
O

N
D

 A
N

D
 D

EM
O

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 4
:3

4p
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

M - 2 - 13



12

15 10

8
8

5

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

DRIVE

THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE

THRU

4

LOT B NOT
INCLUDED IN
THIS SUBMITTAL

SITE PLAN

C4.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

52
64

\6
19

3-
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

FA
 C

4.
0 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
8,

  2
02

2 
- 4

:2
2p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

M - 2 - 14



33
7.

6

21

36

36

36

36

30

30

19

19

12

12

12
12

15 10

8
8

5

ELM
O

R
E (50'w

) C
T.

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

DRIVE

THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE

THRU

4

LOT B NOT
INCLUDED IN
THIS SUBMITTAL

LOT C AND COMMON
GROUND 1 NOT
INCLUDED IN THIS
SUBMITTAL

SITE &
GRADING PLAN

C5.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

52
64

\6
19

3-
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

FA
 C

5.
0 

G
R

AD
IN

G
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
8,

  2
02

2 
- 4

:2
2p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

M - 2 - 15



12

15 10

8
8

5

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

BUILDING F (CHICK-FIL-A)
P14-LSR-LRG
+/- 4,930 SQ. FT.
54 PARKING STALLS
FF=580.00

DRIVE

THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE
THRU

DRIVE

THRU

4

LOT B NOT
INCLUDED IN
THIS SUBMITTAL

SITE UTILITY
PLAN

C6.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

A 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
2

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

52
64

\6
19

3-
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

FA
 C

6.
0 

U
TI

LI
TY

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 4
:2

2p
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

10/18/22

M - 2 - 16


	J1 - All - Emergency Purchases.pdf
	10.24.22
	09.27.22
	09.12.22
	08.22.22

	J3 - All - 2019 CDBG Agreement.pdf
	Blank Page

	J4 - All - Tree Removal Contract.pdf
	Blank Page

	K1 - All Fox News - 7275 Creveling.pdf
	photos - all.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	L1 - Bill 9487 - Easment Vacation Walkway 511and 519 Westview Drive.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND SURRENDERING A PUBLIC
	WALKWAY BETWEEN 511 and 519 WESTVIEW DRIVE.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

	M2 - Bill 9490 - Map Amendment = Market at Olive IV - Lot A.pdf
	5. 2022-10-18 REVISED PRELIM DEV PLAN- LOT A R.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	6193-entitlements-CFA C1.0 TITLE SHEET (2)
	6193-entitlements-CFA C2.0 EASEMENT VACATIONS
	6193-entitlements-CFA C4.0 SITE PLAN
	6193-entitlements-CFA C5.0 GRADING
	6193-entitlements-CFA C6.0 UTILITY


	Blank Page

	K4 - CUP 22-10 Market at Olive Phase 2 Lot 10.pdf
	4. Lot 10 CUP Application 08222022.pdf
	SSN30922092621260


	E2 - 2022-10-10 Draft Reg Minutes with comments.pdf
	Blank Page

	K2 - REVISED - Market at Olive Update - Dierbergs R.pdf
	K2 Supplement - MARKET AT OLIVE 10-24 City Council PowerPoint.pdf
	MARKET AT OLIVE
	Market at Olive Update
	Success for Project Means
	Slide Number 4
	Why Dierbergs
	Proposed Dierbergs Site Plan
	Why the Request for Chapter 100
	Why Agree to Chapter 100
	Potential Cost of Chapter 100
	Benefits of Dierbergs
	Comparison of Cost Benefit
	Summary of Dierbergs Ch 100 Impact
	Review of Request
	Next Steps





